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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
EE A

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Pacific Plywood
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | have the pleasure to report on
the financial results, operations and other aspects of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2013.

The audit report is presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which
is the same as the functional currency of the Group.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group recorded a profit
for the year of HK$74,507,000 (2012: profit of HK$62,279,000), the
basic and diluted earnings per share were HK$0.06 per share and
HK$0.06 per share (2012: basic and diluted earnings of HK$0.22 per
share and HK$0.22 per share (restated)) respectively.

As at 31 December 2013, the consolidated net assets of the Group
were HK$991,927,000 (31 December 2012: net assets of
HK$690,087,000).

DIVIDEND
No dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: nil) is
recommended by the Board.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company, and through its
subsidiaries, is principally engaged in the business of money
lending and provision of credit securities investments, provision of
corporate secretarial and consultancy services and forestry
business.

Money Lending and Provision of Credit Business

Since obtaining the Money Lenders License under the Money
Lenders Ordinance (Cap.163 of the laws of Hong Kong) in 2011, Joy
Wealth Finance Limited ("Joy Wealth”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, has provided a wide variety of loans with an
accumulated amount of approximately HK$790 million. Interest
rates ranged from 10% to 48% per annum during the current year.
For the year ended 31 December 2013, the interest income was
approximately HK$19,955,000 (2012: HK$29,981,000), and there was
no impairment loss (2012: HK$18,294,000) whereas there's a reversal
of impairment loss of HK$5,000,000 on the loan and interest
receivables was noted (2012: HK$83,717,000). Details on the loan
and interest receivables were set out in Note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Securities Investments Business

On 26 April 2013, Best Harvest Asia Limited (“Best Harvest”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired 126,000,000
shares of Simsen International Corporation Limited (a company
whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "“Stock Exchange”) with Stock Code: 993) (“Simsen”)
by fully accepting its provisional allotment under the Simsen rights
issue at a consideration of approximately HK$11,970,000. On 22
July 2013, further 83,000,000 shares of Simsen were acquired at a
consideration of approximately HK$9,380,000. Details have been
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 15 April
2013 and 22 July 2013 respectively.

Subsequent to 11 October 2013 when the share consolidation of
Simsen became effective and as at the date of this report, the
Group was interested in 6,275,000 shares of Simsen, representing
approximately 9.87% of the issued share capital of Simsen.

Upon completion of a subscription on redeemable convertible
preference shares on 30 November 2012 and as at the date of this
report, Perpetual Master Limited (“Perpetual Master”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, is holding 90 redeemable
convertible preference shares of Million Wealth Capital Investment
Limited (“Million Wealth”) of HK$1,000,000 each (the "“Preference
Shares”). By holding such Preference Shares, the Group will earn a
dividend at a rate of 10% per annum, compounded annually, and
will have an additional money lending platform to further promote
and develop its money lending and provision of credit business.
Perpetual Master is entitled the rights to convert the Preference
Shares into ordinary shares as and when appropriate.
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
EE A

On 12 October 2012, the Company completed the investment in
the convertible notes with an interest of 8% per annum issued by
China Environmental Energy Investment Limited (a company whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 986)
("China Environmental”) (the “Convertible Notes"”) in aggregate
principal amount of HK$95,000,000. In order for the Company to
enjoy more flexibility in capturing the possible capital gains, the
Company entered into a call option deed with an optionholder on
12 October 2012, pursuant to which the Company had agreed to
grant and the optionholder had agreed to obtain a call option at a
premium of HK$4,800,000 under which the optionholder can
purchase from the Company the Convertible Notes with principal
amount of up to HK$60,000,000 at the price equivalent to 120% of
the principal amount of such Convertible Notes. During the year
ended 31 December 2013, the optionholder exercised the said call
option and acquired the Convertible Notes in aggregate principal
amount of HK$60,000,000 at total consideration of HK$72,000,000
(which was settled in current year). The option premium of
HK$4,800,000 was paid in full by current year. Moreover, on 5
November 2013, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with a placing agent to procure placee(s) to purchase the
Convertible Notes in an aggregate principal amount of up to
HK$35,000,000 at 280% of the principal amount of the Convertible
Notes (the “Placing”). The Placing was completed on 20 December
2013 whereby the Convertible Notes in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$35,000,000 have been successfully placed by the
placing agent at an aggregate consideration of HK$98,000,000. A
net proceeds of approximately HK$95,550,000 was received. In
aggregate, a net proceeds of approximately HK$172,350,000 was
received and a surplus of approximately HK$77,350,000 over the
investment cost of HK$95,000,000 was recorded.

During the current year, the Group disposed in the open market, (i)
594,000 shares of Huili Resources (Group) Limited (a company
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange with Stock Code:
1303) ("HRGL") with aggregate gross sale proceeds (excluding
transaction costs) of approximately HK$1,461,000; (ii) 5,000,000
HRGL shares with aggregate gross sale proceeds (excluding
transaction costs) of approximately HK$12,250,000; and (iii)
1,406,000 HRGL shares with aggregate gross sale proceeds
(excluding transaction costs) of approximately HK$3,459,000
respectively (collectively the “Disposals”). After the Disposals, the
Group does not hold any HRGL shares. In aggregate, a net
proceeds of approximately HK$17,131,000 was received and a
surplus of approximately HK$5,111,000 over the investment cost of
HK$12,020,000 was recorded.
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Additionally, during the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
has also invested in First Natural Foods Holdings Limited (a
company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange with Stock
Code: 1076) (“First Natural”) and Renhe Commercial Holdings
Company Limited (a company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange with Stock Code: 1387) (“Renhe”) with a view that the
investments were prospective. Details have been disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 29 November 2013 and 31
December 2013 respectively.

In sum, during the current year, the investment in the shares of
Simsen, First Natural and Renhe led to a net fair value gain being
recognized as a comprehensive income approximates to
HK$28,462,000. The investments in the Preference Shares brought
an other income approximates to HK$9,076,000. The disposals of
HRGL shares and the Convertible Notes (including the change in
fair value) contributed to the net profit for the current year by
approximately HK$2,081,000 and HK$62,838,000 respectively.

Provision of Corporate Secretarial and Consultancy Services
Business

The Group has been conducting the provision of corporate
secretarial and consultancy services business mainly through a
wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Pacific Vision Advisory Services
Limited ("Pacific Vision”). The Group has recruited a team of
professionals in the areas of accounting, finance, legal and
corporate secretarial and has built up a client portfolio with a
number of listed companies.

During the current year, a segment revenue of approximately
HK$7,657,000 and a segment gain of HK$245,000 had been
recorded (31 December 2012: HK$5,211,000 and a segment loss of
HK$564,000 respectively).
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
EE A

Forestry Business

On 12 April 2012, the Group completed the acquisition (the
"Acquisition”) of 30% of the entire issued share capital of Profit
Grand Enterprises Limited (“Profit Grand”), which through its
subsidiary has the logging rights within a forest sized approximately
65,800 hectares in the Independent State of Papua New Guinea
(“"PNG"). The total consideration for the Acquisition of
HK$310,000,000 was satisfied as to (i) HK$33,000,000 by the issue of
the convertible bonds in a principal amount of HK$33,000,000 with
conversion price of HK$0.087; (i) HK$82,000,000 in cash; and (iii)
HK$195,000,000 by the issue of a 10% promissory note in aggregate
principal sum of HK$195,000,000. Details of the Acquisition have
been disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 29 February
2012. For the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2013, goodwill
amounted to approximately HK$306,019,000 was recorded as a
result of the Acquisition. As the recoverable amount which was
determined with reference to the valuation report issued by an
independent valuer, Roma Appraisals Limited, is higher than the
carrying amount for the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2013,
no impairment on goodwill is noted. Details of the goodwill are set
out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group has from time to time been following up with the
relevant government authorities and professionals regarding the
outstanding necessary licenses and approvals required for the
commencement of the forestry logging and harvesting in the PNG.
The Company was advised by the PNG legal adviser that the
outstanding necessary licenses and approvals namely the
environment permit and clearance authority, are possible to be
obtained in 2014 but are more likely to be obtained in 2015. With
regards to the progress on the application of the environment
permit, the environment impact statement has been submitted to
the Department of Environment and Conservation, accepted by the
Environment Council and recommended to the Minister to issue
the Approval in Principle which is pending to date as at the date of
this report.

With regards to the progress on the application of the clearance
authority, the submission of the clearance authority had been
delayed due to the Commission of Enquiry into the Special
Agricultural Business Lease system. Currently, the clearance
authority was in preparation for submission. The PNG legal adviser
has confirmed that such enquiry is not a legal impediment as the
Law of the PNG is clear that if the clearance authority application is
in order, then the Forestry Authority must consider the application.
As further advised by the PNG legal adviser, on the assumption
that the application for the clearance authority is in order and in the
absence of any unforeseen circumstances, it is expected that there
is no material legal impediment to obtain the clearance authority.
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OUTLOOK

Money Lending and Provision of Credit Business

Money lending and provision of credit business has continued to
be the major business segment of the Group and contributed
stable interest income to the Group. The Group will further develop
this business segment, diversify the customer portfolio and seek
opportunity to cooperate with both Simsen and Million Wealth,
whose respective principal businesses involve, among other things,
money lending which may bring a synergy effect.

Securities Investments Business

As part of its routine exercise, the Company reviews the
performance of its existing investment portfolio and evaluating the
investment potentials of other investment opportunities available
to the Company. Subject to the result of such reviews, the
Company may make suitable investment decisions according to the
then circumstance which may involve the disposal of the whole or
part of its existing investment portfolio and/or the change of the
components and/or the asset allocation of its investment portfolio
and/or broaden and diversity its investment portfolio with a view of
realizing and/or optimizing the expected return and minimizing the
risks.

Provision of Corporate Secretarial and Consultancy Services
Business

Since its establishment in November 2011, Pacific Vision has
successfully identified a group of listed and corporate clients and
has been delivering on-going corporate secretarial and consultancy
services in different aspects of due diligence, financial analysis, and
valuation analysis to various listed companies in Hong Kong. Pacific
Vision with mission to be one of the prestigious consultancy firms in
the industry and strive to help its clients to achieve strategic goals
and enhance corporate efficiency, performance and value.

Forestry Business

The management of the Group is following up closely with the
vendors, the relevant government authorities and professionals
regarding the outstanding the necessary approvals, licenses,
registrations, confirmation and/or permits as may be required to
conduct forestry related business and to enjoy and exploit the
logging concession under the laws and regulations in the PNG.
Further updates will be announced as and when appropriate.
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
EE A

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had recorded net current
assets of approximately HK$420,107,000 (31 December 2012:
HK$180,590,000); bank balances and cash of approximately
HK$248,757,000 (31 December 2012: HK$44,477,000) and
unguaranteed and unsecured borrowings of approximately
HK$65,000,000 (31 December 2012: nil). The Group did not enter
into any financial instruments for hedging purpose. No tax is
payable on the profit for the year arising since the assessable profit
is wholly absorbed by the tax losses brought forward. Details of
taxation are set out in the Note 12 and 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Capital structure

On 14 August 2013, the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) approved the relevant resolutions in relation to the
proposed capital reorganization at a special general meeting of the
Company, pursuant to which with effect from 15 August 2013, the
number of authorised shares of the Company was increased from
5,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.08 each to 400,000,000,000 shares of
HK$0.001 each, and the amount of issued share capital of the
Company on 15 August 2013 was reduced to HK$556,420.53
divided into 556,420,530 new shares with par value of HK$0.001
each. Details of the capital reorganization have been set out in the
circular of the Company dated 22 July 2013. The number of shares
to be issued upon the full exercise of the Longjiang Option (as
defined in the circular of the Company dated 29 February 2012) was
adjusted from 12,936,318 shares to 3,234,079 shares while the
subscription price of each of the shares under the Longjiang Option
adjusted from HK$2.00 per share to HK$8.00 per share.

On 20 August 2013, the Company announced to raise not less than
approximately HK$200.31 million and not more than approximately
HK$201.48 million, before expenses, by issuing not less than
1,112,841,060 rights shares and not more than 1,119,309,218 rights
shares to the qualifying shareholders by way of the rights issue at
the subscription price of HK$0.18 per rights share on the basis of
two rights shares for every one share held on the record date (the
"Rights Issue”). Subject to the satisfaction of the conditions of the
Rights Issue, bonus shares will be issued to the first registered
holders of the rights shares on the basis of one bonus share for
every one rights share taken up under the Rights Issue. On the
basis of not less than 1,112,841,060 rights shares and not more than
1,119,309,218 rights shares to be issued under the Rights Issue, not
less than 1,112,841,060 bonus shares and not more than
1,119,309,218 bonus shares will be issued (the “Bonus Issue”).
Details of the Rights Issue (with the Bonus Issue) have been
disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 16 September 2013.
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On 4 November 2013, upon the Rights Issue (with the Bonus Issue)
had become unconditional, the total number of issued ordinary
shares of the Company became 2,782,102,650 with the par value of
HK$0.001 each. The number of shares to be issued upon the full
exercise of the Longjiang Option (as defined in the circular of the
Company dated 29 February 2012) was adjusted from 3,234,079
shares to 6,287,049 shares while the subscription price of each
share under the Longjiang Option shall be HK$8.00 per share as
certified by financial adviser of the Company. A net proceeds of
approximately HK$194 million was raised from the Rights Issue (with
the Bonus Issue) and of which, approximately HK$142 million was
used for the money lending and provision of credit business as
intended as announced on 25 November 2013 and remaining of
approximately HK$52 million was yet to be utilized as at the date of
this report.

Significant Investment, Acquisition and Disposals

As aforesaid, all the shares of HRGL and the Convertible Notes
were disposed during the current year which contributed to the net
profit for the current year by approximately HK$2,081,000 and
HK$62,838,000 (including the change in fair value) respectively and
a net cash of approximately HK$189,481,000 was received in
aggregate.

On 26 April 2013 and 22 July 2013, Best Harvest further acquired
the shares of Simsen at a consideration of approximately
HK$11,970,000 and HK$9,380,000 respectively. The equity interest
held by Best Harvest in Simsen increased from 6.61% to 9.87%
during the current year and as at the date of this report.

On 23 July 2013, Alpha Riches Limited (“Alpha Riches”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a framework
agreement in relation to a possible acquisition of a parcel of land in
Beijing, the People’'s Republic of China, details of which were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 23 July 2013.
However, parties to the framework agreement have not concluded
and entered into the formal agreement for the proposed
acquisition during the exclusivity period as Alpha Riches is not
satisfied with the outstanding legal issues on the project site and
the target group as advised by legal adviser. The framework
agreement has lapsed and terminated on 23 November 2013.

Furthermore, the Group sought for prospective investment
opportunities and accordingly, during the current year, the Group
has acquired 17,000,000 First Natural shares at a consideration of
approximately HK$76,500,000 and has acquired 80,000,000 Renhe
shares at a consideration of approximately HK$41,620,000. Details
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 29
November 2013 and 31 December 2013 respectively. As at the date
of this report, these two investments were still being held.
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
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Save for disclosed herein, there was no other significant investment,
acquisition or disposal that should be notified to the Shareholders
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Segment Information

Details of segment information of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013 are set out in Note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Employees

As at 31 December 2013, 16 staff members have been employed.
In-house training programs were provided for the staff to enhance
their skills and job knowledge. The management of the Company
would continue to foster close co-operation among the staff.

The Group will review the employee remuneration from time to
time and salary increment is normally approved annually or by
special adjustment depending on length of services and
performance when warranted. In addition to salaries, the Group
provides employee benefits including medical and mandatory
provident funds. Share options and bonuses are also available to
employees of the Group at the discretion of the Directors and
depending on the financial performance of the Group and the
employees.

Details of Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2013, the Group did not pledge any assets to
banks or other financial institutions nor did the Group have any
corporate guarantee given to any entity (31 December 2012: nil).

Future Plans for Material Investment or Capital Assets

As at the date of this report, the Company is holding 90
redeemable convertible Preference Shares of HK$1,000,000 each.
The Company has from time to time reviewed the business and
financial performance of Million Wealth. The Group will consider
the redemption of the Preference Shares or to convert the
Preference Shares into ordinary shares of Million Wealth as and
when appropriate.
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It is the Group's corporate mission to continue to explore ways to
improve its financial performance, to diversify its operations into
new and more profitable businesses and to broaden the sources of
revenue within acceptable risk level. Hence, the Company does not
rule out the possibility of investing in or changing to other
profitable business as long as it is in the interest of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole. Also, as part of its routine
exercise, the Company reviews the performance of its existing
investment portfolio and evaluating the investment potentials of
other investment opportunities available to the Company from time
to time. Subject to the result of such review, the Company may
make suitable investment decisions which may involve the disposal
of the whole or part of its existing investment portfolio and/or
change of the asset allocation of its investment portfolio and/or
expanding its investment portfolio with a view of realizing and/or
optimizing the expected return and minimizing the risks.
Meanwhile, the Company does not preclude the possibility that the
Company may implement debt and/or equity fund raising plan(s) to
satisfy the financing needs arising out of any business development
of the Group as well as to improve its financial position in the event
that suitable fund raising opportunities arise, as the Company has
from time to time been approached by investors for potential
investment projects.

As at the date of this report, the Company had not entered into any
agreement, arrangement, understanding, intention or negotiation
that should be disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

Treasury Policy

The Group has adopted a treasury policy on 24 May 2011 in relation
to the Group's investments in securities of other listed companies
on the Stock Exchange. The objective of the policy is to enable the
Group to control and govern the possible future securities
investments (if any, which may or may not occur).
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
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Working capital and gearing ratio
The gearing ratios of the Group as at 31 December 2013 and 2012
were as follow:

Amounts due to directors JERTEE IR
Note payable (Note 29) e 8 (F17E 29)
Borrowings (Note 30) a8 (Mfat30)

Less: Bank balances and cash (Note 26)

Net debt BIEF5
Total equity e m fR R
Total capital BAR4a%E

Gearing ratio (net debt to total capital)

Foreign exchange exposure

Some transactions, financial assets and financial liabilities of the
Group are denominated in Renminbi, United States dollar and PNG
Kina. During the current year, as the exchange rate of Renminbi
and Kina to Hong Kong dollars fluctuated, the Group was exposed
to foreign currency exchange rate risk. The Group has not
implemented any foreign currency hedging policy at the moment.
However, continuous monitoring on the foreign exchange exposure
is carried out and the management will consider hedging the
foreign exchange exposure if it has material impact on the Group.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (31 December 2012: nil).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Chuan Fu, Chairman, aged 40, joined the Group since
13 April 2010. He is also the director of twelve subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Huang acquaints with money lending and provision
of credit business and is experienced in securities investment
business.

Mr. Liang Jian Hua, aged 44, joined the Group since 29 April 2010.
He is also a director of a subsidiary of the Company. He has years
of working experience in trading and property investment,
securities investment and money lending businesses. Currently, he
is the vice president of Zhejiang Shunfeng Steel Co., Ltd. Mr. Liang
was a non-executive director of China Environmental Energy
Investment Limited until 20 January 2014.

Ms. Jia Hui, aged 46, joined the Group since 13 April 2010. She has
more than 20 years of working experience in the area of
merchandising and project management. Since 2003, she has been
appointed as the business development manager of Beijing
International Trade Corporation.

Mr. Jiang Yi Ren, aged 47, joined the Group since 29 April 2010. He
has more than 20 years of working experience in the area of
manufacturing and property investment. Currently, he is the vice
president of Wenling City Zhong Fa Precision Steel Parts Co., Ltd.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Chun Hung, aged 41, graduated from Hong Kong
Baptist University with an honors degree in accounting in 1995. He
joined the Group since 22 April 2010. He is an associate of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over
10 years’ experience in accounting, auditing and consulting. Since
November 2005, he has been the managing director of B&C
Finance and Corporate Advisory Limited. Moreover, he was a
financial controller of General Nice Group and its associate Abterra
Limited, which is a listed company in Singapore until April 2011. Mr.
Wong was a non-executive director of King Stone Energy Group
Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong (Stock code: 663) until 12
March 2013. He was also an independent non-executive director of
two listed companies in Hong Kong, namely China Household
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Bao Yuan Holdings Limited,
Stock Code: 692) and Tech Pro Technology Development Limited
(Stock code 3823), until 30 June 2011 and 7 January 2011
respectively. He was an executive director of TLT Lottotainment
Group Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong (Stock Code: 8022)
until 31 December 2013.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSAEIEEEFE

Mr. Wong Sze Kai, aged 27, joined the Group since 14 December
2012. He holds a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration
(Finance Investment Concentration) from The University of Southern
California, U.S.A. Currently, he is the manager of Wanshida Paint
(Xiaogan) Incorporation Limited. He was a director of Ellafanny
Brands (Shenzhen) Limited steering the business development and
managing the business operation and brand building. Besides, Mr.
Wong possesses of corporate finance, accounting and corporate
secretarial experiences in various listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Zheng Zhen, aged 37, joined the Group since 10 May 2013. He
graduated from Southwestern University of Finance and Economics,
majoring in Accounting. Mr. Zheng possesses of over 10 years
experiences in accounting and finance in various industries.
Currently, he is the financial controller of Zuoquan Xinrui Metallurgy
& Mine Co. Limited* (£ # % In )8 € & 1 B R 2 7)) which is
indirectly owned as to 22.8% by Abterra Limited, a listed company
in Singapore.

Save as disclosed herein, there is no other relationship between

each of the Directors and the senior management as required to be
disclosed under the Listing Rules.
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

The following is a summary of the audited consolidated results of

the Group for the respective years as hereunder stated.

HK$’ 000
FTET

Revenue g 29,693
Profit (loss) attributable to the ANAEHEA AJE(S

owners of the Company wA (BE) 75,597
Dividends Phds =

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The following is a summary of the audited consolidated statement
of financial position of the Group as at the respective dates as

hereunder stated.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B ER B E

BEX
ATAAEERTIHEBEE 2 KRBZEAFE
BME -

For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=1—HLEE
2012 2011 2010 2009
T =ZT——% ZT-FTF ZTTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT T T
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E5) (ZE5) (E51)
34,720 53,369 4,385 -
62,283 (134,081) 75,914 (75,996)

Bt % AR S R =

AT RAKER T8 A Bz REZEAMG
RRRARE

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-—H
2011 2010 {00}
= —E——F =ZEZ2-TF ZITThEF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHAT FHT RV T
(Restated) (Restated)
(&851)) (E=51)
Property, plant and equipment % « BiE K& 1,394 2,575 173 35 408,560
Goodwill EES 306,019 306,019 - - -
Interests in an associate N /N P oy - - - - 5,468
Deferred tax assets RIEHBEE - - - - 37,692
Deposit for acquisition of REEARFEZ RS
logging concession 242 269 - - -
Investment deposits KET& - - 20,000 - -
Convertible instruments Al T A (5 AR
designated as financial NEEEBER
assets at fair value through YIEEZ S RMEE)
profit or loss - 104,712 - - -
Loan and interest receivables [EWE K& FE 222,430 127,646 273,221 145,752 -
Available-for-sale financial HHEEMEE
assets 264,165 95,922 25,200 - -
Other current assets EfnehaE 265,224 68,315 102,989 82,281 80,774
Current liabilities mENBE (67,547) (15,371) (11,472) (136,533) (627,907)
Non-current borrowings JERNEREE - - - - (109)
Representing: g
Share capital R AR 2,782 178,054 247,585 1,927 33,194
Reserves & 988,984 511,849 162,526 85,221 (136,466)
Non-controlling interests FEPERRE 161 184 - 4,387 7,750
Shareholders’ equity (deficit)  RRE xS (B4H) 991,927 690,087 410,111 91,535 (95,522)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
XREBHE

The board of directors (the “Board”) (the "Director(s)”) is
committed to uphold a high standard of corporate governance
practices and business ethics in the belief that they are essential for
maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and maximising
shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate governance
practices from time to time in order to meet the rising expectations
of shareholders and comply with increasingly stringent regulatory
requirements (both locally and internationally), and to fulfill its
commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited (the “Company”) has complied
with the code provisions ("Code Provisions”) on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the
Stock Exchange except for the deviations as explained below. The
principles as set out in the Code Provisions have been applied in
the Company’s corporate governance structure.

DEVIATION FROM CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. Two independent non-executive directors of the
Company who were appointed in previous years were not
appointed for a specific term but were subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting in
accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company. As such, it is
considered that such provisions are sufficient to meet the
underlying objectives of the relevant provisions of the CG Code.
Also, the Board does not believe that arbitrary term limits on
Directors’ service are appropriate given that Directors ought to be
committed to representing the long-term interests of the
Shareholders.

Code Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code stipulates that all
independent non-executive Directors and non-executive Directors
should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders. Due to their personal
commitments, Mr. Wong Sze Kai was unable to attend special
general meetings of the Company held on 14 August 2013, 4
October 2013 and 18 December 2013 and the annual general
meeting dated 21 June 2013, Mr. Zheng Zhen was unable to attend
special general meetings of the Company held on 14 August 2013
and 18 December 2013 and the annual general meeting dated 21
June 2013 and Mr. Wong Chun Hung was unable to attend special
general meeting of the Company held on 14 August 2013.
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THE BOARD

The Board is in charge with overseeing the business and affairs of
the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) that aims at
enhancing the Company’s value for stakeholders. The Director,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith in the best
interests of the Company and its Shareholders. Roles of the Board
include reviewing and guiding corporate strategies and policies,
monitoring financial and operating performance and setting
appropriate risk management policies.

The primary role of the Board is to oversee how the management
serves the interests of the Shareholders and other stakeholders. To
achieve this, the Board has adopted corporate governance
principles aimed at ensuring that the Board is independent and
fully informed on the key strategic issues facing the Company. As at
the date of this report, the Board comprises of four executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. In
respect of CG Code D.1.4, subsequent to 31 March 2012, formal
letters of appointment for Directors setting out the key terms and
conditions of their appointment were subsequently executed by all
Directors.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material relationships with each other. Such balanced board
composition is formed to ensure strong independence exists across
the Board. At least one of the independent non-executive Directors
has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise that complies with Rule 3.10(2) of
the Listing Rules. The brief biographical details of the Directors are
set out in pages 15 to 16 of this report, which demonstrates a
diversity of skills, expertise, experience and qualifications. The
Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director annual confirmations of their independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers such
Directors to be independent.

Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules require that the Board
and the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
should include at least three independent non-executive directors
and members respectively. Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules requires
the board to have at least one-third in number of its members
comprising independent non-executive directors.
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The total number of independent non-executive Directors and
members of the Audit Committee fell below the minimum
requirement as set under the Listing Rules after the resignation of a
former independent non-executive Director, Mr. Cheng Po Yuen,
on 29 April 2013. Upon the appointment of Mr. Zheng Zhen on 10
May 2013 as an independent non-executive Director and a member
of Audit Committee, there are three independent non-executive
Directors and three Audit Committee members respectively, and
the Company has then fully complied with the Listing Rules in this
regard.

Under the Bye-Laws of the Company, one-third of the Directors, or
if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest one-third, shall be subject to retirement by rotation. They
are required to retire from office at each annual general meeting
and their re-election is subject to a vote of the shareholders of the
Company. Retiring Directors are eligible for re-election at the
annual general meeting at which they retire. Further, any Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company but shall be
eligible for re-election at the meeting. Separate resolutions are
proposed for the election of each Director.

For having a diversified Board which is regarded as an essential
element in the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development, in August 2013, the Board adopted a
Board Diversity Policy with principles as summarized below.

The Nomination Committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) reviews and assesses the composition of the Board
and makes recommendations to the Board on appointment of new
Directors. The Nomination Committee also oversees the conduct
of the annual review of the effectiveness of the Board. In reviewing
and assessing the composition of the Board, the Nomination
Committee will consider the benefits of all aspects of diversity in
order to maintain an appropriate range and balance of talents,
skills, experience and background on the Board. In recommending
candidates for appointment to the Board, the Nomination
Committee will consider candidates on merit against objective
criteria and with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board, including but not limit to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge, length of service etc.
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DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect
of the legal action against the Directors.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors
should take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.
The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing, and coordinating the daily operation of the Company are
delegated to the management.

The number of Board meetings and general meetings held during
the year ended 31 December 2013 and the Directors’ respective
attendance record are summarised as follows:

=%

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. HUANG Chuan Fu, Chairman =HERLE  TE

Mr. LIANG Jian Hua RBERSE

Ms. JIA Hui BBt

Mr. JIANG Yi Ren B—frxAx

Mr. NG Kwok Fai (ceased on 16 July 2013) REELEE (R -Z—

AT ABE)

Non-executive Director FHITES

Mr. CHAN Kin Sang BRIEESE(RZE—=F
(ceased on 30 April 2013) MA=+HBE)

Independent Non-executive Directors BYKHITES

Mr. WONG Chun Hung mIEME A

Mr. WONG Sze Kai =BESE

Mr. ZHENG Zhen Bkt (R-T—=%F
(appointed on 10 May 2013) AA+HEZME)

Mr. CHENG Po Yuen
(ceased on 29 April 2013)
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Number of board

Number of general meetings attended
meetings attended (32 board meetings
(4 in total) in total)
HEEESgE
RE(EH32%
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1/4 31/32
0/4 32/32
0/4 28/32
1/4 31/32
1/4 7/8
N/A i3 F 6/6
3/4 30/32
0/4 18/32
1/4 25/26
N/A i3 F 6/6
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Regular Board meetings are convened and held by the Company,
and Directors are given adequate notice to attend such regular
Board meetings or other Board meetings. Directors are also
provided in a timely manner with appropriate information in such
form and of such quality as will enable them to make an informed
decision and to discharge their duties and responsibilities as
Directors. Minutes of regular Board meetings, other Board
meetings or other committees meetings are recorded in sufficient
details.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Each newly appointed director is provided with comprehensive
induction to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
operations and businesses of the Group as well as his
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.

During the year, all Directors were provided with regular updates
on the Group’s business and operation and information which
covered topics including but not limit to the CG Code, the
disclosure and compliance of inside information, updates and
changes in relation to legislative and regulatory requirements in
which the Group conducts its business for their study and reference.
During the year, all Directors have participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. All directors (being Mr. Huang Chuan Fu, Mr. Liang Jian
Hua, Mr. Jiang Yi Ren, Ms. Jia Hui, Mr. Ng Kwok Fai, Mr. Chan Kin
Sang, Mr. Wong Chun Hung, Mr. Wong Sze Kai, Mr. Cheng Po
Yuen and Mr. Zheng Zhen) received regular briefings and updates
from the Company Secretary on the Group’s business, operations
and corporate governance matters, studied publications, books
and other reading materials or attended seminars or workshops
delivered by professionals, which are relevant to their duties and
responsibilities.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the terms as contained in the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules) as the Company's code of
conduct for securities transactions and dealings (“Model Code”).
All existing Directors, upon specific enquiry, have confirmed that
they have complied with the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2013.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the role of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Huang Chuan Fu serves as
the Chairman of the Company but the Company does not have any
offices with title of “Chief Executive Officer”. The executive
Directors undertake the day-to-day management of the Company’s
business, whereas the Chairman is responsible for management of
the Board and strategic planning of the Group. Under the existing
arrangement, the Board believes that the balance of power and
authority is adequately ensured and such arrangement is for the
benefits of the Group. However, the Board will also review regularly
the board composition and appoint a Chief Executive Officer if a
suitable person is identified.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Two
independent non-executive Directors whom were appointed in
previous years are not appointed for a specific term but are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company. As such,
it is considered that such provisions are sufficient to meet the
underlying objectives of the relevant provisions of the CG Code.
Also, the Board does not believe that arbitrary term limits on
Directors’ service are appropriate given that Directors ought to be
committed to representing the long-term interests of the
shareholders of the Company.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was duly constituted on 29 June 2005 and comprises
of an executive Director, Mr. Huang Chuan Fu and three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Wong Chun Hung,
Mr. Wong Sze Kai and Mr. Zheng Zhen (appointed on 10 May 2013).
Mr. Cheng Po Yuen resigned as an independent non-executive
Director and ceased to be a member of this committee on 29 April
2013.
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The role and function of the Remuneration Committee are:

(a)

24

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company'’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration;

to have the delegated responsibility to determine the specific
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment,
and make recommendations to the Board of the
remuneration of non-executive directors. The Remuneration
Committee should consider factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-
based remuneration;

to review and approve performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time;

to review and approve the compensation payable to
executive directors and senior management in connection
with any loss or termination of their office or appointment to
ensure that such compensation is determined in accordance
with relevant contractual terms and that such compensation is
otherwise fair and not excessive for the Company;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure
that such arrangements are determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms and that any compensation
payment is otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration.
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Remuneration Committee meeting was held during the year ended
31 December 2013 and the Remuneration Committee members’
respective attendance records are summarised as follows:

Mr. WONG Chun Hung, Chairman
Mr. HUANG Chuan Fu
Mr. WONG Sze Kai
(appointed on 29 April 2013)
Mr. ZHENG Zhen
(appointed on 10 May 2013)
Mr. CHENG Po Yuen
(ceased to be member on 29 April 2013)

HIAMSEL  TE
=EELE

—THBEEEET)

EZRMT)

The remuneration payable to Directors is determined by reference
to their experiences and duties with the Company and the
estimated time spent by them on the Company’s matters. During
the current year, meeting was held to review the performance and
remuneration of Directors and make recommendation to the Board
for the new Director and resigned Director. Details of the Directors’
remuneration are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was duly constituted on 13 February 2012 and
comprises of three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Wong
Chun Hung, Mr. Wong Sze Kai and Mr. Zheng Zhen (appointed on
10 May 2013). Mr. Cheng Po Yuen resigned as an independent non-
executive Director and ceased to be a member of this committee
on 29 April 2013.

The role and function of the Nomination Committee are:

(a)  to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and length of service) of the
Board at least annually; and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to implement the Company'’s
corporate strategy;

to consider the skills mix needed in respect of directors and
make recommendations to the Board;
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() to identify and nominate candidates to fill casual vacancies of
Directors for the Board's approval. Academic and professional
qualifications, business experience, expertise and knowledge
as well as other requirements under the Listing Rules will be
assessed to determine if the nomination is suitable;

(d) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and review the independent non-executive
Directors’ annual confirmations on their independence; and
make disclosure of its review results in the Corporate
Governance Report;

(e) to regularly review the time required from a Director to
perform his responsibilities;

(f)  to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors
and succession planning for Directors in particular the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive;

(99 to do any such things to enable the Nomination Committee
to discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the
Board; and

(h)  to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that
may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the Company’s constitution or imposed by
legislation.

In 2012, prior to the setting up of the Nomination Committee, the

Board as a whole is responsible for the said duties of the
Nomination Committee.
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During the year, meeting was held by the Nomination Committee
to, among other things, review the structure, size and composition
of the board, make recommendation for appointment of Director,
assess the independence of each of the independent non-
executive Directors and formulate the board diversity policy and
recommend to the board for approval. The Nomination Committee
reviewed the board diversity policy to ensure its effectiveness and
considered the Group achieved the policy since its adoption. The
following table shows the attendance of individual members at the
meeting held during the year:

Mr. WONG Chun Hung, Chairman
(appointed as Chairman on 29 April 2013)
BERERERE)
Mr. WONG Sze Kai BRELE
Mr. ZHENG Zhen
(appointed on 10 May 2013)
Mr. CHENG Po Yuen

(ceased to be member on 29 April 2013)

EZME)

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The Group engaged ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited to
perform audit for the year ended 31 December 2013 and other
non-audit services for agreed-upon procedures on interim results
and a rights issue during the year ended 31 December 2013 at a fee
of approximately HK$900,000 and of HK$340,000 respectively.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

On 10 May 2013, Mr. Zheng Zhen was appointed as a member of
the Audit Committee, while Mr. Cheng Po Yuen had ceased to be a
member of the Audit Committee on 29 April 2013 since his
resignation as an independent non-executive Director.

The number of Audit Committee meetings held during the year
ended 31 December 2013 and the committee members’ respective
attendance records are summarised as follows:

Mr. WONG Chun Hung, Chairman
Mr. WONG Sze Kai
Mr. ZHENG Zhen
(appointed on 10 May 2013)
Mr. CHENG Po Yuen
(ceased to be member on 29 April 2013)

HIAMSEL  TE
BEERESE

BRI

The role and function of the Audit Committee:
Relationship with the Company’s auditors

(@) to be primarily responsible for making recommendation to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of the external auditor and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

(b)  to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the external auditor before the audit
commences, the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations, and ensure co-ordination where more than one
audit firm is involved;
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(d)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

to develop and implement policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services. For this
purpose, external auditor shall include any entity that is under
common control, ownership or management with the audit
firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed third party
having knowledge of all relevant information would
reasonably conclude as part of the audit firm nationally or
internationally. The Audit Committee should report to the
Board, identifying any matters in respect of which it considers
that action or improvement is needed and making
recommendations as to the steps to be taken; and

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company's relations with the external auditor.

Review of financial information of the Company

(e)

to monitor integrity of financial statements of the Company
and the Company’s annual report and accounts, interim
report and, if preparation for publication quarterly reports,
and to review significant financial reporting judgements
contained in them. In this regard, in reviewing the Company'’s
annual report and accounts, interim report and if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports before submission to the Board,
the Audit Committee should focus particularly on:

() any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgemental areas;

(i) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumption and any qualifications;
(v} compliance with accounting standards; and

(vi)  compliance with the Exchange Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

as regards to (e) above:

(i) members of the Audit Committee must liaise with the
Board, the Company’s senior management and the
person appointed as the Company’s qualified
accountant and the Audit Committee must meet, at
least twice a year, with the Company’s external auditors;
and
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TEEIAWRE

(i) the Audit Committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in
such reports and accounts and must give due
consideration to any matters that have been raised by
the issuer’s qualified accountant, compliance officer or
external auditors;

Oversight of the Group’s financial reporting system and internal

control procedures

(9)

30

to review the Group's financial controls, internal control and

risk management systems;

to discuss with the management the system of internal control
and ensure that management has discharged its duty to have
an effective internal control system;

to consider any findings of major investigations of internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and management’s response;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-
ordination between the internal and external auditors, and to
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the Group, and to review
and monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit function;

to review the Group's financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management in
respect of the accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of control and management’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor's management letter;

to report to the Board on the matters set out in this terms of
reference;
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(o)  to review the Company’s arrangements for its employees can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. The Audit Committee shall ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action; and

(p) to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.
Corporate Governance Functions

(9) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

(N to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(s)  to review and monitor the Company'’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(t)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;

and

(u)  to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the financial
results and reports as well as the Company'’s internal control review
report. The Audit Committee also met the external auditor and
monitored the appointment of external auditor. Besides, the Audit
Committee performed the corporate governance duties as
delegated by the Board as discussed below.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Audit Committee is responsible for performing the functions
set out in the CG Code D.3.1. The Audit Committee reviewed the
Company's corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company'’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Listing Rules, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

TEEARE

(0) WIARARENATRYE : REMEREAER
BERT R SRR - AEBEE M E
BEZRENTEETRRELRE - BXEE
SRBRAEESLH BLARYUEEEE
HAFBLNREERRIEE RETE &

) ZBEEFEMAE2EMERE -
RREVEBEE

@ HERBEARTANCEEARERER
A P EEE IR

N WBAREREERSREEABNEIIREF
BEXRR:

5) RERERARTDEETEEMNEERES
EHBER R ER

O HE R RERERNMER REFRT
ZARARTM R

) RBEARFENEEERRE)ANNTE K
BEMTE °

FR BRZEGCEFHNMBEERREALRN
REAHEITEHEE - BEREZBENERINE
ZHED - WEERINEZBEN 2 R - WS B
ZESCBROTTXHIEEZTEERIOXER

<7
EZLZEQRARBITREEIATAED.31 R
BeE - ERZ B RAARFAZEEERER
LRER BERSMERBZBIILBEERSE
B ARAREBTERREERETEZBEK
B BT EMRAZER  RARETRES
ATRAZBERARRERERREANZIE -

ATARERRARAT T =FFR 31



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
XREBHE

DIRECTORS’' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE GROUP’S
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements of the Group which are prepared in accordance with the
relevant statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards in force, and are published in a timely manner. The
Directors are responsible for selecting and applying on a consistent
basis suitable accounting policies and ensuring timely adoption of
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards.

The Board understands the importance of presenting a clear and
comprehensive assessment of the Group's overall performance,
financial positions as well as prospects in a timely manner; and the
Board is pleased to report that, so far, the annual and interim
results of the Group are announced within the three months and
two months limit respectively after the end of the relevant periods.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining a sound
and effective internal control system for the Group to safeguard the
investments of the shareholders and assets of the Group at all
times. The system of internal control aims to help achieving the
Group's business objectives, safeguarding assets and maintaining
proper accounting records for provision of reliable financial
information. However, the design of the system is to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement in the financial statements or loss of assets and to
manage, rather than eliminate, the risks of failure when business
objectives are being sought. Management has conducted regular
reviews during the year on the effectiveness of the internal control
system covering all material controls in the financial, operational
and compliance controls, various functions for risks management as
well as physical and information systems security. The Audit
Committee reviews internal control issues identified by external
auditor, regulatory authorities and the management team, and
evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems. The Audit Committee in
turn reports any material issues to the Board.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with the Shareholders
through annual general meetings or special general meetings and
Shareholders are encouraged to participate.
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SHAREHOLDERS' COMMUNICATION POLICY

On 30 March 2012, the Board adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy to comply with the updated Listing Rules
and to reflect mostly the current communication practices of the
Company with its Shareholders. Such policy aims to (i) promote
effective communication with Shareholders and other stakeholders;
(i) encourage Shareholders to engage actively with the Company;
and (iii) enable Shareholders to exercise their rights as Shareholders
effectively. However, the Board will review the Shareholders’
Communication Policy on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness
and compliance with the prevailing regulatory and other
requirements.

The Company established a range of communication channels to
provide its Shareholders and stakeholders with balanced and
understandable information about the Company. These include
annual general meeting, annual report, interim report, various
notices, announcements and circulars. The annual general meeting
and other general meetings of the Company are primary forum for
communication between the Company and its Shareholders. The
Company shall provide Shareholders with relevant information on
the resolution(s) proposed at a general meeting in a timely manner
in accordance with the Listing Rules. The information provided shall
be reasonably necessary to enable Shareholders to make an
informed decision on the proposed resolution(s).

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE
A SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, a special general
meeting shall be convened by the members of the Company
holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than
one-twentieth (5%) of such of the paid-up capital of the company as
at the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. The requisitionists must submit their
requisition in writing, in which it must state the objects of the
meeting, and be duly signed by the requisitionists, mailed and
deposited at Units 3301-03, 33/F., West Tower Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong
(attention of company secretary).
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If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting for a day not
more than 28 days after the date on which the notice convening the
meeting is given, the requisitionists, or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall
not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the said date. Any
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason of
the failure of the Directors duly to convene a meeting shall be
repaid to the requisitionists by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS BY
SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, proposals at
Shareholders’ meetings can be put forward by the members of the
Company holding at the date of the submission of the proposals
not less than one-twentieth (5%) of such of the paid-up capital of
the company as at the date of the submission carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the company.

The submission of the proposals must be made within 3 business
days after a notice of the Shareholders’ meeting have been served
to all registered shareholders by the Board. The proposals must be
written and must state the objects of the proposals, and must be
signed by the proposers, and mailed and deposited at Units
3301-03, 33/F., West Tower Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught
Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong (attention of company
secretary); and may consist of several documents in like form, each
signed by one or more proposers.

The proposals will be verified with the Company’s share registrar
and upon its confirmation that the proposals are proper and in
order, the company secretary will ask the Board to update the
resolutions by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all registered shareholders, provided that
the proposers have deposited a sum of money reasonably sufficient
to meet the Company’'s expenses involved in publishing
supplementary circular and updating related resolutions. On the
contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not in order, the
proposer will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, no
resolution will be updated as requested.
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PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for the
attention of company secretary, by email: pphlhk@pphl.com.hk,
fax: (852) 2114 0292, or mail to Units 3301-03, 33/F., West Tower
Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan,
Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There was no amendment made to the constitutional documents of
the Company during the year.
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EEEHE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of its registered
office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street Hamilton, HM 12,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is Units
3301-03, 33/F., West Tower Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught
Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
through its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
engaging in money lending and provision of credit business,
provision of corporate secretarial and consultancy services,
securities investments and forestry business. The activities and the
particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 36 to the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 46 and 47.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2013 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity in pages 50 to 51.

DONATIONS
There was none donation made by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2013 (2012: HK$10,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in
Note 18 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Details of the movements in share capital and convertible notes of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out
in Notes 33 and 32 respectively to the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Movements in the distributable reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in
Note 35 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Bye-Laws and the laws in Bermuda.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years ended 31 December 2013 is
set out on page 17 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year. As at 31
December 2013, 2,782,102,650 ordinary shares with a par value of
HK$0.001 each were in issue. Details are set out in the “Capital
structure” section in pages 10 to 11 of this annual report and Note
33 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

On 12 April 2012, a share option was granted to China Longjiang
Forest Industry (Group) General Corporation (“Longjiang Forest
Industry”) for its assistance and advice pursuant to the Strategic
Cooperation Agreement entered on 2 December 2011 for the
establishment of a strategic alliance with the Group in respect of
the development and management of the forest sized
approximately 65,800 hectares in the PNG (the “Forest”) (the
"Longjiang Option”). The Longjiang Option entitles Longjiang
Forest Industry to subscribe for not more than 5% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of the Strategic
Cooperation Agreement of 2 December 2011, equivalent to
495,170,096 shares. As a consequence of the capital reorganisation
effective on 15 August 2013 and the rights issue (with the bonus
issue) effective on 4 November 2013, the number of shares to be
issued upon the exercise of the Longjiang Option has been
adjusted to 6,287,049 shares at the subscription price of HK$8.00
per share which have been certified by financial adviser of the
Company. As at the date of this report, the Longjiang Option has
not been exercised since its grant date and is still in effect.

Besides, the share option granted to Jia Run Investments Limited
(the “Agent”) on 12 April 2012 for its assistance to procure the
Company and Longjiang Forest Industry to enter into the Strategic
Cooperation Agreement as abovementioned and advise the
development and exploitation in the Forest pursuant to which the
Agent was entitled to subscribe for not more than 5% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at 2 December 2011 has not been
exercised and has been expired. Details of the Longjiang Option
and the Agent Option were set out in Note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme pursuant to
an ordinary resolution passed on 12 June 2012 by terminating the
previous share option scheme which had expired on 21 June 2012.
During the annual general meeting held on 21 June 2013, the
Shareholders duly approved that, subject to and conditional upon
the listing committee of the Stock Exchange granting listing of and
permission to deal in the shares of the Company to be issued upon
the exercise of options which may be granted under the Company’s
Share Option Scheme, the existing scheme mandate limit in
respect of the granting of options to subscribe for shares of the
Company under the Share Option Scheme be refreshed and
renewed provided that the total number of shares of the Company
which may be allotted and issued pursuant to the grant or exercises
of the options under the Share Option Scheme (excluding options
previously granted, outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised
under the Share Option Scheme) shall not exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at 21 June 2013, that is
222,568,212 shares of the Company. The Directors are authorised,
subject to compliance with the Listing Rules, to grant options under
the Share Option Scheme up to the Refreshed Limit and to exercise
all the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with shares
of the Company pursuant to the exercise of such options granted
under the Share Option Scheme. The subscription price will be a
price determined by the Board and at least the highest of: (a) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets on the date of grant of the option, which must be
a business day; (b) the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the option; and (c)
the nominal value of the shares. The total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of options must not exceed 30% of
the number of shares in issue from time to time. No options may be
granted if such grant would result in the 30% limit being exceeded.
No share option has been granted or exercised since the adoption
of the Share Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December
2013 and up to the date of this report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HUANG Chuan Fu, Chairman
(appointed as Chairman on 16 July 2013)

Mr. LIANG Jian Hua

Ms. JIA Hui

Mr. JIANG Yi Ren

Mr. NG Kwok Fai (ceased on 16 July 2013)
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. CHAN Kin Sang (ceased on 30 April 2013)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. WONG Chun Hung

Mr. WONG Sze Kai

Mr. ZHENG Zhen (appointed on 10 May 2013)

Mr. CHENG Po Yuen (ceased on 29 April 2013)

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-Laws and
Corporate Governance Code Provision A.4 under Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules, Mr. Liang Jian Hua, Ms. Jia Hui and Mr. Jiang Yi
Ren will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers such
Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company, which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company, any of its fellow subsidiaries or its parent
company was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

Brief biographical details of the Directors and Senior Management
are set out on pages 15 to 16 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors and
their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) are
considered to have any interests in the businesses which compete
or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group, other than those businesses where the
Directors were appointed as directors to represent the interests of
the Company and/or the Group.
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REPORT QF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
As at 31 December 2013, none of the Directors is a director or
employee of a company which has an interest or short position in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of Divisions 2
and 3 Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") and
none of the Directors, the chief executive of the Company nor their
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any other interests
or short positions in the shares of the Company, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which any such Director or the chief executive of the
Company is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or
maintained by the Company, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO;

(b) were required to be entered into the register
or (c) were required to be notified to the Company or the Stock

Exchange, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transaction
by Directors of Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE'RIRECTORS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND/
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under
section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31 December
2013, the Company had been notified of the following substantial
shareholders’ interests and short positions, being 5% or more of
the Company's issued share capital.

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company:

Capacity and nature of interest

BoRkESNE

Su Weibiao Held by controlled corporation
B HEESARRAE

Beneficial owner

Emfa A

Allied Summit Inc. (Note 1)
Allied Summit Inc. (#7a% 1)

Notes:

1. Allied Summit Inc. is owned as to 80% by Mr. Su Weibiao and as to remaining
20% by Mr. Ng Kwok Fai.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount
of revenue attributable to the Group's five largest customers and
the largest customer represented approximately 67% and 25%
respectively of the Group's total revenue.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount
of direct cost attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers and
the largest supplier represented approximately 39% and 21%
respectively of the Group's total direct cost.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest
in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

=

=R

FERRREAQXTARGREBERD 2
EER/ KR

RZT—=F+ZA=+—H0 BREEFLHE
ERBIFEXVERFE 336 GMEFEZ T BRRE M
FREiss  RARIBEMEATEERREBEARF]
BEEITRARS% RIA L2 e KR -

REQAFEBEBRZHER -
Percentage of
Number of the Company'’s
shares issued share
interested capital (%)
HARQAT BT
B EZEE BT 2t (%)
1,621,219,755 58.27
1,621,219,755 58.27
fif e -
1. Allied Summit Inc. A ERAEIZ S EWE B 80% iz » MR

BB A AR R T 20% 1S o

BEEWN
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Bl 4B 2549 67% N2 25% ©
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REPORT QF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the section of “Share Options” disclosed above, at no
time during the year ended 31 December 2013 was the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Company and the Group as at 31
December 2013 are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group has joined the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for
all of its employees in Hong Kong. Particulars of the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are set out in Note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions as disclosed in Note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements does not fall under the definition
of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction”
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. No disclosure requirement is
needed accordingly.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Board confirms that the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required under
the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2013 and as
at the date of this report.
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REPORT OF THE'DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

AUDITORS BBk
The Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 AXARBE_ZE——F+_A=+—HILEEZ
December 2011 were audited by Shinewing (HK) CPA Limited. BRI RE KM (ES) @B SER

NEEZ

ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited was appointed as the HEZ(HEB)MERMERAREZETAELRA
auditor of the Company in succession to SHINEWING (HK) CPA Bl #fh - UIER(Ekh M (FH) @M= AT
Limited, who resigned from the office with effect from 9 January BRAG(A_-_E—=F—FBNBRET) 2B o
2013. The Company's financial statements for both the yearended AXAREHEE-_ZEZT— -k _ZT—=F+_A4
31 December 2012 and 2013 were audited by ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA =+ —H I FE P BEHREIIRTE (FE) 5t

Company Limited. MEBAAERAREZ -

ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited shall retire and, being FZE (FE) S EEBRER AT ENEETE -
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment in the forthcoming FHAERIEERARAREERIEEFTASES

annual general meeting of the Company. i

On behalf of the Board REZEES

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited APFEEXZERBRAR
Huang Chuan Fu FE

Chairman =HEE

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014 &8 —T—NNF=A_-+HH
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
T8 S % B ¥

g

TO THE MEMBERS OF

PACIFIC PLYWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
REFEHEEZERERAE

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Pacific
Plywood Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 46 to 152,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

44 Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

h% (&8 ) EETRSEHRARAD
ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited

BAFFEXEZERERAF
ERRR

(REFZETIMELZBRAA)

AREE A TR [R1) EBRTHNEISE
EEINEATAEEERARAA(EAR)
REKBAR (5078 [ HRE ) ZHAMBEE -
EFRER-E-=F+-A=t-AZEAH
BHABRERBERA L EE 2GRN &
SRERAMRERERE  HARBEDER
GARERER  UREBEHRERERA
BPER -

ESRGAMBRRAREZER

BERRBEFARERBETEGIMAGRMLE
B E R R E B R BRD 2 TR R
REBERFHINRGAMBRE UEEEES
RRYREIREMERRN S BLE 2 NAREE
IS B HRR T FERRFRERMEEZ
EXREARIRAL -

BBz BT

BB TERERFNEZH U ETEE YR
RERBR  URBEREQATDEFENKERE
BERRME - Rz s ABEHEEMBED -
BT ERAREZATRAETAMEMALE L5k
EEEFET - RS RBEEESTMASEM
ZEBBENEAETESZ - EEENERREME
SRR WHREILRRITESR  LAEETER
BMBHREREE T FEEAERERBRAL -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December
2013 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Lam Chik Tong

Practising Certificate Number: P05612

Suites 313-316

3/F., Shui On Centre
6-8 Harbour Road
Wan Chai

Hong Kong

25 March 2014
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ENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-_A=-+—HLLFE

2013
—E-=F
HK$'000
FTER

Turnover — gross proceeds EEE— IENUEAE 8
Revenue g 9
Interest income FEHA
Others Hith
Cost of sales SHE RN
Interest expenses FERX 10
Other cost of sales H g e A
Gross profit EH
Other income and gains HAWA R 11
Reversal of impairment loss on loan and WS 5 K I BREEE
interest receivables, net R EF5E 23

Gain on disposal of convertible instruments
designated as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Change in fair value of convertible instruments
designated as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial assets

Change in fair value of a derivative financial asset

Change in fair value of investment held for trading

Share-based payment expenses

Administrative expenses

Operating profit
Finance costs

Profit before tax
Income tax credit

Profit for the year

Profit (loss) for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share:
Basic

Diluted

HERMRT A (EE AR
ARTEFEBERRZ
SREE) 2 W 21
BB TAGEEAEATE
FBRERIEZEHEE)
ZATEEE) 21
EHESREEZREER 22
TESMEEZATEES
BIERSGBREZATFEES
AR BER S R X 38
THEHR

@R

BAMKA 10

B 7% A1 A
s e 12

FEREF 13
TH B EREGERER (FE) :

AREHEAA
BRI 5

BRER 17
E-YN
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HK$'000
TET

48,640

34,720
29,981
4,739
(3,003)
(200)
(2,803)

31,717
7,505

65,423

9,712
(19,278)
(4,000)
3,030
(1,367)
(27,141)

65,601
(3,334)

62,267
12

62,279

62,279

(Restated)
(E%)

HK$0.22 /% 7T

HK$0.22 % 7T




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COM
e BmKkE

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE_T—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

2013
—g-—=

Notes HK$’000 H K$ 000
k23 FET FETT

Profit for the year FREF 62,279
Other comprehensive income Hib2EUW s
Items that may be subsequently reclassified HEAEHRSEEEF 2

to profit or loss: EH :
Available-for-sale financial assets: AHEESREE

— Change in fair value — RTHEEH 22 -
Exchange differences arising on translation BMEEEZIENZE -
Other comprehensive income for the year FARAEMEEKE -
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAXERRERE 62,279
Total comprehensive income (expenses) THFEEERE

attributable to: Wz (Bs) 48 -

Owners of the Company RARHEAA 62,283

Non-controlling interests FEE R (@)

62,279
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ATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2013
RZE—=F+=ZA=+—H

2013
—g—=

HK$'000

FET

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill
Deposit for acquisition of logging concession
Convertible instruments designated
as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Loan and interest receivables
Trade and other receivables
Investment held for trading
Tax recoverable

Bank balances and cash

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals
Amounts due to directors
Note payable

Interest payable

Borrowings

Convertible note

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

FRBEE

YE NG
mE

LICE P M SR Pdiven
AR T AGEERR
NHEE BB
ZERMEE)
AHhESREE

RBEE

JE W B TR RS

TR L2 R R LAt FE M R
FHER SR E
REEE
RITRERR N IRE

RBAEE

Ho Aty JEAS 5008 S FEF T B
BN ESFUA

AN

FEFIFIE

BE

AHRRER

RBEEFE

EERERABAR
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18
19
20

21
22

23
24
25

26

27
28
29

30
32

2,575
306,019
269

104,712
95,922

509,497

127,646
8,720
15,050
68
44,477

195,961

1,883
154
10,000
3,334

15,371

180,590

690,087



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR BRI

At 31 December 2013
RZZE—=F+-A=+—H

2013 2012
—E—= —E—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Kt e THET THBT
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ERREE
Share capital A& A 33 2,782 178,054
Share premium BB 721,226 524,993
Available-for-sale financial assets revaluation — AI[{EHE SR EESHHEE
reserve 28,462 -
Share-based payment reserve VARRAD B BT SR 1,367 1,367
Contributed surplus BEREH 277,102 100,717
Translation reserve (E R 298 (160)
Accumulated losses EEy F (39,471) (115,068)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company N2 BI#EAG A JEIHEZS 991,766 689,903
Non-controlling interests SRR =R 161 184
TOTAL EQUITY REEAE 991,927 690,087
The consolidated financial statements on pages 46 to 152 were  F46ZE 12BFTEGAMBEHREE R T —NF
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directorson 25 =A=+HH %?%%Qﬁtxﬁ&?i%?‘ﬁé‘ Wl T
March 2014 and are signed on its behalf by: TIANTREEE
Huang Chuan Fu Liang Jian Hua
Director Director
EF EF
=HER REE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GAEREHE

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-_A=-+—HLLFE

Share
capital

i
HK$000

AT

Share

premium

HK$000
Tin

assets
revaluation

reserve

B
HKS'000
TR

Attributable to ow

Convertible
notes

reserve

HKS$'000
TEL

Share-based
payment
reserve

1 &
HK$000

TEL

ners of the Company

Contributed
surplus

B
HK$'000
TEL

Translation

reserve

Accumulated
losses

ZiER
HK$000
T

HK$'000
AL

Non-
controlling
interests

At 1 January 2012 R-%--%-5-H 247585 340037 - - - - (160) (177,351) 41011 - 410,111
Profit loss) and total EREH (B8 R
comprehensive income 2ENE (AR 4

(expenses) for the year - - - - - - - 62283 62283 ) 0219
Capital reduction (Note 33b)  IRAvElE (#i3233) (237,682) - - - - 27,682 - - - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBRA (Wit 39)

(Note 39) - - - 2,748 - - - - 2,748 188 2993
Issue of shares upon conversion AT ARZEE

of convertible notes R (i 330)

(Note 33(c) 3793 25,307 - (29,748) - - - - (648) - (648)
Issue of right shares (Note 33(e)  S{TEER (7 (41 33) 27,9 164,358 - - - - - - 191,751 - 191,751
Right issues expenses HRET - (4.709) - - - - - - 4709) - 4.709)
Issue of bonus shares (Note 33(e)) 247418 (#i33e) 136,965 - - - - (136.95) - - - - -
Issue of share option BRRE - - - - 1367 - - - 1367 - 1367

(69,531) 184,956 - - 1,367 100,717 - - 217,509 168 217697
At 31 December 2012 RZE-ZE+Zf=1-A 178,054 524993 - - 1,367 100,717 (160) (115,068) 689903 184 690,087
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At January 2013

Profit loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income
for the year
Items that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss:
Available-for-sale financial
assets:
— Change in fair value
Exchange differences arising
ontranslation

Total comprehensive income
(expenses) for the year

Capital reduction (Note 33(g))
Issue of right shares (Note 33(h)
Right issues expenses

Issue of bonus shares (Note 33(h))

At 31 December 2013

CONSOLIDATED STATEME

Share
capital

S

HK$'000

TET

RZF-=F-A-8

Ematl(BE)
ERAMEENE

RETEFARERSRS
TenaE:
—1FERE
agfEEL e

EnzEE(RR) LR

BRalE (i 339)
BAHRRD (W233m)
HRAX
BiTHR (i 33m)

RZF-=F+-f=1-A

Available-for-

sale financial

assets

Share  revaluation
premium reserve
e

SHEE

EftifE

HK$'000 HKS'000
TER TER

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T—=F+-A=1+—RLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
ARARRAER

Convertible ~ Share-based Non-
notes payment  Contributed  Translation ~ Accumulated controlling
reserve reserve surplus reserve losses Total interests
TEREE RER
% AREE  REBR  EXBR  ZHER Bt FERER &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TEn TR TR




ATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-_A=-+—HLLFE

Notes
i3

OPERATING ACTIVITIES FES—rE )
Profit before tax B 758 B 55 )
Adjustments for: FE
Interest income FEHA
Dividend income f& B U A
Finance costs RbE AN
Depreciation of property, plant and VI~ BB R ERETE
equipment
Impairment loss recognised in respect of EEREWER L
loan and interest receivables FEREBE
Reversal of impairment loss on loan and FEWE R LA BIRE
interest receivables 518 E

Change in fair value of convertible
instruments designated as financial

AR T A (FEER/EATFE
BRBREIRZERMERE)

> ATES
5 TR T A (5 A4
ATEEBIERIIE Y

assets at fair value through profit or loss
Gain on disposal of convertible instruments
designated as financial asset at fair value

through profit or loss TREE) 2 WE
Change in fair value of investment FERZGREZ A TEZS)
held for trading
(Gain) loss on disposal of investment HERFERGREZ
held for trading (Weas) 1B

Impairment loss on available-for-sale AP ESREE 2 REBE
financial assets

Change in fair value of derivative
financial assets

Share-based payment expenses

HESREET ATEED

PAB D B BB FRFA X

Operating cash flows before movements LBESEHAIZ
in working capital KREWERE

(Increase) decrease in loan and interest FEUNE T & (32 h0) 5
receivables

Decrease in trade and other receivables

(Decrease) increase in other payables and

accruals and interest payable

R T B 5 L At R MK R TR R
HoAth FE A 5008 S FEFH B
K eSS ORl 4 #E

REXG(ERELEZRS
REN(ER)BAMED

Cash (used in) generated from operations
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded (paid)

REER(EREEZ
REFE

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
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2013
—E—-=F
HK$’000
TR

2012
—E - F
HK$'000
FETT

62,267

(1,690)
(764)
3,534
913
18,294

(83,717)

(9.712)

(3,030)
472
19,278

4,000
1,367

11,212

210,998
19

630

222,859
(123)

222,736



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net proceed from disposal of convertible

instruments designated as financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss

Purchases of available-for-sale financial assets

Net proceed from disposal of investment
held for trading

Interest received from convertible instruments

designated as financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Bank interest received
Purchase of convertible instruments
designated as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Purchase of investment held for trading

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of shares upon
rights issue

Proceeds from new borrowings

Repayment of note payable

Interest paid

Payment for rights issue expenses

(Repayment to) advances from directors

Repayment of borrowings

NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 1 JANUARY
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER
represented by bank balances and cash

REED

HERMBBRTAGEEREAFE
BBBRINEZEREE) 2

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BE-F-=FT-A=t—

2013
—E—-=F

HK$’000
FET

Notes
i3

BIEFE
2012

—E - F
HK$'000

TET

TS B35 -
EEHHESREE (90,000)
HERER FIRE 2 B RIA

pEiL] 13,448
AR T E (BT AR ATE

FHRERIEZEMEE)

2FE -
HWEME - WERE (3,315)
BUERITHR S 3
EBEBRRTAGEEARATE

FRERIEZEMEE)

(95,000)
IR BT B A 7 (62,000)
BEFEXSHKRE (12,020)
RETEEE (FER) 2

B REE (248,884)
RLEEE
HAREF BEITAR ) 2 TS 5RIE

191,751
MR EE SR -
EEENEE (185,000)
ERFLE (200)
TR (4,709)
(BR)ESBX 2
EEEE (10,000)
METHEE(FR) RS FHE
(8,156)
HeERBELEEN 2

BGRB8 (34,304)

—B—BZBEELRESEEY

78,781
HNESTE R B ) 2 R -
+=A=+—-H%2

HERBLEEY

BIRTTHEH LIRS 44,477

ATFREBRERAT I8 =57

530



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-T—=—F+-A=-+—BHLEE

1.

54

GENERAL

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited (the "Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
address of its registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda. The principal place of
business of the Company is Units 3301-03, 33/F., West Tower
Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung
Wan, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are money lending
and provision of credit business, provision of corporate
secretarial and consultancy services, securities investments
and forestry business.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong

Kong dollars (“"HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Group.

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs and Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“"HKICPA").

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 1 Government Loans

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to Consolidated Financial Statements,

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11

and HKFRS 12

Joint Arrangements and Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of ltems of
Other Comprehensive Income

HKAS 19 (Revised in 2011) Employee Benefits
HKAS 27 (Revised in 2011) Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 (Revised in 2011) Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures
HK(IFRIC*) —
Interpretation (“Int") 20

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine

* IFRIC represents the International Financial Reporting Interpretations

Committee

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs and HKASs in the current year has
had no material impact on the Group's financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

2.

e M HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z—=F+-"A=1+—HIFE

FERAHI RSB EEMBREE
AT &EEMBREER D)

RAFE  AEEEERABUTHEES
NE([BEGREAE]) B2 ¥ REE
AIEAMBHREENRELGHER(EE
SRR -

BRM BRE R (BRIA)

SPENFEST-—F

BRERIE
BEMBREER BATER
F1HR(BIX)
FAIHHELR BE—AReREE
EYLACHEN) kemAE

BRMBREEAE 0%
BEMBREEAE R

SAMBRE  BATH
PUNEt g L S

REBYBREER ZEE  BEES
F125 (BRI A)

EAMBRELEANE 0%  SAMBRR
EEUHRERENS R BATH
EEUBRELENSF 125  RELEEERIEE
EEUBRERESE 135 DTERHE
EASHENE 1R (BFA) EM2ENEEEER
BEASHENE 19% EEREF
(ZZ——F§31])

BEAQTERE TR BuBRE

(Z2——FE1])
BASENE 85 PEHEARRALLE

(ZE——F§1]) &

55 (ARMERERE BERESEEMRER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-T—=—F+-A=-+—BHLEE

2.

56

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 13 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of
guidance for, and disclosure about, fair value measurements.
The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad: the fair value measurement
requirements of HKFRS 13 apply to both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for which other
HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value (e.g.
net realisable value for the purposes of measuring inventories
or value in use for impairment assessment purposes).

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price that
would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a
liability, in the case of determining the fair value of a liability)
in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under
current market conditions. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is an
exit price regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure requirements.

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application. In accordance
with the transitional provisions of HKFRS 13, the Group has
not made any new disclosure required by HKFRS 13 for the
2012 comparative period (please see Note 7 for the 2013
disclosures). Other than the additional disclosures, the
application of HKFRS 13 has not had any material impact on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1 PRESENTATION OF
ITEMS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income. Upon
the adoption of the amendments to HKAS 1, the Group's
“statement of comprehensive income” is renamed as the
“statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income” and the “income statement” is renamed as the
"statement of profit or loss”. The amendments to HKAS 1
retain the option to present profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in either a single statement or in two
separate but consecutive statements. Furthermore, the
amendments to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be
made in the other comprehensive income section such that
items of other comprehensive income are grouped into two
categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are
met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive income is
required to be allocated on the same basis — the
amendments do not change the option to present items of
other comprehensive income either before tax or net of tax.
The amendments have been applied retrospectively, and
hence the presentation of items of other comprehensive
income has been modified to reflect the changes. Other than
the above mentioned presentation changes, the application
of the amendments to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact
on profit or loss, other comprehensive income and total
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ire M ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-T—=—F+-A=-+—BHLEE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)
NEW AND REVISED HKFRSS IN ISSUED BUT NOT

YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs and HKASs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:
Amendments to HKFRSs
Amendments to HKFRSs
HKFRS 9
HKFRS 14
Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKFRS 27
Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 32
Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle?
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle?
Financial Instruments®
Regulatory Deferral Accounts*
Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures?

Investment Entities’

Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions?

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities'

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets'

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting'

Levies'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with

earlier application permitted.

earlier application permitted.

3 Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be
determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised.

earlier application permitted.
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Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS TO HKFRSs 2010-2012
CYCLE

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions of
"vesting condition” and "market condition”; and (ii) add
definitions for “performance condition” and "service
condition” which were previously included within the
definition of "vesting condition”. The amendments to HKFRS
2 are effective for share-based payment transactions for which
the grant date is on or after 1 July 2014,

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability should
be measured at fair value at each reporting date, irrespective
of whether the contingent consideration is a financial
instrument within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 or a non-
financial asset or liability. Changes in fair value (other than
measurement period adjustments) should be recognised in
profit and loss. The amendments to HKFRS 3 are effective for
business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or
after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose
the judgements made by management in applying the
aggregation criteria to operating segments, including a
description of the operating segments aggregated and the
economic indicators assessed in determining whether the
operating segments have “similar economic characteristics”;
and (ii) clarify that a reconciliation of the total of the
reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s assets should only
be provided if the segment assets are regularly provided to
the chief operating decision-maker.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-T—=—F+-A=-+—BHLEE

2.

60

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS TO HKFRSs 2010-2012
CYCLE (Continued)

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS 13
clarify that the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential
amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 did not remove the
ability to measure short-term receivables and payables with
no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without
discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove perceived
inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated
depreciation/amortisation when an item of property, plant
and equipment or an intangible asset is revalued. The
amended standards clarify that the gross carrying amount is
adjusted in a manner consistent with the revaluation of the
carrying amount of the asset and that accumulated
depreciation/amortisation is the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the carrying amount after taking into
account accumulated impairment losses.

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management
entity providing key management personnel services to a
reporting entity is a related party of the reporting entity.
Consequently, the reporting entity should disclose as related
party transactions the amounts incurred for the service paid
or payable to the management entity for the provision of key
management personnel services. However, disclosure of the
components of such compensation is not required.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) do not
anticipate that the application of the amendments included in
the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle will
have a material effect on the Group's consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS TO HKFRSs 2011-2013
CYCLE

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does
not apply to the accounting for the formation of all types of
joint arrangement in the financial statements of the joint
arrangement itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the
portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a group of
financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis includes
all contracts that are within the scope of, and accounted for in
accordance with, HKAS 39 or HKFRS 9, even if those contracts
do not meet the definitions of financial assets or financial
liabilities within HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and HKFRS
3 are not mutually exclusive and application of both standards
may be required. Consequently, an entity acquiring
investment property must determine whether:

(@) the property meets the definition of investment
property in terms of HKAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business
combination under HKFRS 3.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments included in the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle will have a material effect on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
are subsequently amended in 2010 to include the
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities and for derecognition, and further
amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for hedge
accounting.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (Continued)
HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value of
the financial liability that is attributable to changes in
the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the
three types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility
has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible for
hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the
types of risk components of non-financial items that are
eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness
test has been overhauled and replaced with the principle of
an "economic relationship”. Retrospective assessment of
hedge effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk management
activities have also been introduced.

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the
future may have significant impact on amounts reported in
respect of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities.
Regarding the Group's financial assets, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed
review has been completed.

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 AND
HKAS 27 INVESTMENT ENTITIES

The amendments to HKFRS 10 define an investment entity
and require a reporting entity that meets the definition of an
investment entity not to consolidate its subsidiaries but
instead to measure its subsidiaries at fair value through profit
or loss in its financial statements.

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity is
required to:

o obtain funds from one or more investors for the purpose
of providing them with professional investment
management services;

o commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to
invest funds solely for returns from capital appreciation,
investment income, or both; and

o measure and evaluate performance of substantially all
of its investments on a fair value basis.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 AND
HKAS 27 INVESTMENT ENTITIES (Continued)

Consequential amendments have been made to HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 to introduce new disclosure requirements for
investment entities.

The Directors do not anticipate that the investment entities
amendments will have any effect on the Group's consolidated
financial statements as the Company is not an investment
entity.

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 32 OFFSETTING
FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offset of financial assets and financial
liabilities requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify
the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right of
set-off” and “simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 32 will have a significant impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements as the Group does
not have any financial assets and financial liabilities that
qualify for offset.

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 36 RECOVERABLE
AMOUNT DISCLOSURES FOR NON-FINANCIAL
ASSETS

The amendments to HKAS 36 remove the requirement to
disclose the recoverable amount of a cash generating unit
(CGU) to which goodwill or other intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives had been allocated when there has
been no impairment or reversal of impairment of the related
CGU. Furthermore, the amendments introduce additional
disclosure requirements regarding the fair value hierarchy,
key assumptions and valuation techniques used when the
recoverable amount of an asset or CGU was determined
based on its fair value less costs of disposal.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these

amendments to HKAS 36 will have a significant impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group's voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 12
Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in
another HKFRS.

GOODWILL

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
GOODWILL (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit
on a pro rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

In the Company's statement of financial position, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
accumulated impairment loss. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
services provided in the normal course of business.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

Consultancy income is recognised when services are
provided.

Realised fair value gains or losses on securities trading are
recognised on a trade date basis whilst unrealised fair value
gains or losses are recognised on change in fair value at the
end of the reporting period.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s rights to receive payment have been
established (provided that it is probable that the economic
benefit will flow to the Group and the amount of income can
be measured reliably).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes,
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Continued)

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

o exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

o exchange differences on transactions entered into in
order to hedge certain foreign currency risks (see the
accounting policies below); and

° exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary
items.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of the
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interest as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and retranslated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

BORROWING COSTS
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

TAXATION
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plans
and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"), available-for-sale financial assets and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified
as FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or
losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group financial assets
or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits the
entire combined contract (assets or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets and is included in the change in fair values of
investment held for trading and change in fair values of
financial assets at FVTPL in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

Convertible instruments acquired by the Group (including
related embedded derivatives) are designated at financial
assets at FVTPL on initial recognition. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the entire convertible instruments are measured
at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
financial assets at FVTPL or loans and receivables. The Group
designated the long term investments in listed and unlisted
equity securities as available-for-sale financial assets on initial
recognition of those items.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as available-for-sale financial assets and are traded
in an active market are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount of
available-for-sale monetary financial assets relating to interest
income calculated using the effective interest method and
dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of available-for-sale financial assets revaluation
reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the available-for-sale financial assets
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on financial
assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive
the dividends is established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to
and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
investments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including loan and interest receivables, trade and
other receivables and bank balances and cash) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment on financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that security below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment on financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as loan and
interest receivables and trade and other receivables, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group's past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 90
days, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods (see the
accounting policy below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment on financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of loan and interest receivables and trade and
other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a loan and interest receivable or a trade
or other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written-off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written-off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to
an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of available-for-
sale financial assets revaluation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liabilities are either held for trading or those
designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near future; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term

profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

o the financial liability forms part of a group financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (assets or liability) to be designated
as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any interest paid on the financial liabilities and is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Fair
value is determined in the manner described in Note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including other payables and
accruals, amounts due to directors, note payable, interest
payable and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than those financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL, of
which the interest expense is included in cost of sales and
finance cost.

Convertible notes

The component parts of the convertible notes issued by the
Company are classified separately as financial liabilities,
equity and early redemption option which is not closely
related to the host liability component are classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability, an
equity instrument and a derivative financial instrument.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.

At the date of issue, the liability and the early redemption
option component are measured at fair value. The difference
between the gross proceeds of the issue of the convertible
notes and the fair value assigned to the liability component
and the early redemption option, representing the conversion
option for the holder to convert the notes into equity, is
included in equity (convertible notes reserve).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible notes (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible notes is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The early redemption option is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss. The equity component, representing the option
to convert the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, will remain in convertible notes reserve until the
embedded option is exercised (in which case the balance
stated in convertible notes reserve will be transferred to share
premium). Where the option remains unexercised at the
expiry date, the balance stated in convertible notes reserve
will be released to the retained profits. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of
the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability, equity and early
redemption option components in proportion to the
allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to
the equity component are charged directly to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are
included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible notes using the
effective interest method. Transaction costs relating to the
early redemption option are charged to profit or loss
immediately.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which case the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

(Continued)

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises an
associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise, and
the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part
that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and any
cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative
fair value of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event
and it is probable that the Group will be required to settle
that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value
of money is material).

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

Share options granted to suppliers/consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are
measured at the fair values of the goods or services received,
unless the fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which
case the goods or services received are measured by
reference to the fair value of the shares options granted. The
fair values of the goods or services received are recognised as
expenses, with a corresponding increase in equity (share-
based payment reserve), when the Group obtains the goods
or when the counterparties render services, unless the goods
or services qualify for recognition as assets.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share-based
payment reserve will continue to be held in share-based
payment reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
IMPAIRMENT ON TANGIBLE ASSETS OTHER THAN
GOODWILL (SEE THE ACCOUNTING POLICY IN
RESPECT OF GOODWILL ABOVE)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Control over Profit Grand Enterprises Limited (“Profit
Grand”) and its subsidiary, I-Sky Natural Resources (PNG)
Limited (“I-Sky Natural”) (collectively referred to as the
“Profit Grand Group”)

As described in Note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements, Profit Grand is a subsidiary of the Group despite
the fact that the Group has only 30% equity interest of Profit
Grand Group. The Group obtained the control over the
majority composition of the board of directors of Profit Grand
and 51% of the total voting rights in the general meetings of
Profit Grand. After assessment, the Directors concluded that
the Group has control over the Profit Grand Group.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment in Million Wealth Capital Investment Limited
("Million Wealth”)

As described in Note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements, the unlisted investment in redeemable
convertible preference shares of Million Wealth is recognised
as available-for-sale financial assets of the Group as the
Group has not actively participated in the daily operation and
no involvement in the policy-making process of Million
Wealth for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.
After assessment, the Directors consider that the Group had
neither control nor significant influence over Million Wealth
and treated the investment in redeemable convertible
preference shares as available-for-sale financial assets as a
long-term investment.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classifies the listed equity securities investments
as available-for-sale financial assets and recognises changes
of their fair values in other comprehensive income. When the
fair value declines, management makes judgement to
determine if the decline in value is significant or prolonged
and whether there is an impairment that should be
recognised in profit or loss. During the year ended 31
December 2013, no impairment loss (2012: HK$19,278,000)
was recognised for available-for-sale financial assets. The
carrying amounts of the listed equity securities investments
classified as available-for-sale financial assets as at 31
December 2013 were HK$174,165,000 (2012: HK$5,922,000),
the details of which were set out in Note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group classifies the unlisted investments in redeemable
convertible preference shares as available-for-sale financial
assets and recognises at cost less accumulated impairment.
The management makes judgement to determine if such
investment is impaired, by evaluating the financial health of
and near-term business outlook for the investee including the
operating and financing cash flow. During the year ended 31
December 2013, no impairment (2012: Nil) was considered
necessary in relation to the unlisted investments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. During the year ended 31
December 2013, no impairment (2012: Nil) was considered
necessary in relation to the goodwill. As at 31 December
2013, the carrying amount of goodwill is approximately
HK$306,019,000 (2012: HK$306,019,000). Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in Note 19 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment allowances on loan and interest receivables
The Group establishes, through charges against the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, impairment
allowances in respect of estimated incurred loss in loan and
interest receivables. The allowances consist of individual
impairment allowances. The overall impairment allowances
represent the aggregate amount by which the management
considers necessary to write-down its loan portfolio in order
to state it in the consolidated statement of financial position
at its estimated net recoverable value.

In determining individual impairment allowances,
management considers objective evidence of impairment.
When loan receivable is impaired, an individual impairment
allowance is assessed by a discounted cash flow method,
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Impairment allowances on loan and interest receivables
(Continued)

In determining collective impairment allowances,
management uses estimates based on historical experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective
evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolio.

The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, no impairment
loss in respect of loan and interest receivables (2012:
HK$18,294,000) had been recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Fair value of convertible instruments designated as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The fair value of convertible instruments designated as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss were
determined using valuation techniques. The Group had used
its judgement to select an appropriate valuation method and
make assumption, on issuer’s credit spread, discount rate,
expected credit rating and future cash flow, that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the transaction date
and each reporting date with reference to the valuation
performed by Roma Appraisals Limited (“Roma Appraisals”),
an independent firm of professional valuers. Changes in
subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair
value estimate. Details of the assumptions used are disclosed
in Notes 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

The convertible instruments designated as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss was fully disposed during the
year ended 31 December 2013. Change in fair value of the
convertible instruments designated as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of approximately HK$35,491,000
(2012: HK$9,712,000) is recognised in profit or loss during the
year ended 31 December 2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong.
Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made. In cases where
the taxes charged by the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department are different from the estimated amounts, a
material tax charge may arise. In addition, no deferred tax
asset has been recognised on the tax losses of HK$5,985,000
(2012: HK$15,466,000) as it is uncertain that there will be
sufficient future profits available to utilise the balances.

Fair value measurement and valuation processes

Some of the Group's assets are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. The management determines
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements. In estimating the fair value of an asset, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation.
The management works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to the model.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair
value of certain types of financial instruments. Note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements provide detailed
information about the valuation techniques, inputs and key
assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of
various assets.

4.

e M HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z—=F+-"A=1+—HIFE

ARETHERETTEEEZE
ERR (&)

fEEt RREM 2 EZRIR ()

Vo ar
NEBBMMBESEH - EEMSHEE
RAEHERGE - REBEKAES B
ERETEE L ZIER 5 M E 8L © M
ZEBB L REB R PRS-
EAERETEELEEATHB ZEH
NORER IR o BT B FT U EL T 5 82
AT AMTERN - AJREEAEAFIER
% o thAN AR KRAEHETE RS E B KGR
FIrEBAEEAES WU ERRESE
5,985,000 7T ( — & — — F : 15,466,000 75
TO) ERIEER B E E -

RPETEBRIEGEEBRE

AEBETEEDRATEFEARRTE
FHRAH - ERERAFEAEETERMG
ERMRBARE - A EEZ A FER
AEBERAATSABRRSIE - HF R
ZBEABEBEIAR AEEEZEE =48
BRMEMGEMETHE - EEERAER
SNSYIRIGERMBE T A - BRI REZEE
By AR A g A B IE -

AEBERBERELIFUABEETHEEESK
Bz ABEEANGERD G ETHE
ERMTAZRAVE - GEMEHRRMETH
BEEBRRARETZREEQAFEZMEER
M WABBEREZBRZFAER -

ATHEBEERERAT IF—=FFR 93



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
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5.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes amounts due to directors, note payable and
borrowings, net of bank balances and cash and total equity
comprising issued share capital and reserves. Details of which
are disclosed in respective notes.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associate with each class of capital, and
take appropriate actions to adjust the Group’s capital
structure.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, calculated
as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
amounts due to directors, note payable and borrowings, less
bank balances and cash. Total capital is calculated as “total
equity” as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position plus net debt. The Group aims to maintain the
gearing ratio at a reasonable level. The gearing ratios at the

end of the reporting periods were as follows:
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FEBERLAR  ABERAEEETER
WA S - FE B B I R
G4 BBEES R AL - AEE BN
SRR R T o

il

AEBEZEAERRAER(ETREENE
EHE - BRNRBEREE  MBRRBITERRK
BeUREDZER(BRCBETRANER)
AR o FEIBIMARREM EEIRER ©

EETHMAENERE - ERUIART TIE—
By EFEEEARAREZEE AN
ZEE - WRBGEETHUHABAEEZE
LN

AEBERBEEARBLR(REFFRENU
BABEAE)EREN - BHRFRIIIZE
NEFEFA BNRERMEERRITESRK
BEstE - ERNRBENREASMBIERE
PR [Hesm A% ] IEEFRAE - K
BAORGEERBLRERREEKFE - R
BEPRZEEARLERNT

2013 2012

—E—=F —E—_F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Amounts due to directors EEEFHIE = 154

Note payable ENER = 10,000

Borrowings (Note 30) B8 (M 30) 65,000 -

Less: Bank balances and cash B IRITEREE S (248,757) (44,477)

Net debt BIEF5E (183,757) (34,323)

Total equity s 991,927 690,087

Total capital N R 808,170 655,764
Gearing ratio (net debt to total capital) BEARELE

(BEEFHEEERRE) (23%) (5%)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINA

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets
Financial assets at FVTPL:

Convertible instruments designated
as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Investment held for trading
Available-for-sale financial assets
Loans and receivables
Loan and interest receivables
Trade and other receivables
Bank balances and cash

Financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost:

Other payables and accruals
Amounts due to directors
Note payable

Interest payable

Borrowings

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include investment
held for trading, convertible instruments designated as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loan and
interest receivables, available-for-sale financial assets, trade
and other receivables, bank balances and cash, other
payables and accruals, amounts due to directors, note
payable, interest payable and borrowings. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risks (foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and other
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

MARKET RISK

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, Independent State
of Papua New Guinea ("PNG") and People’s Republic of
China (“PRC") with most of the transactions denominated and
settled in HK$, Kina (“PGK") and Renminbi (“RMB"). No
foreign currency risk has been identified for the PNG
subsidiary’s financial assets denominated in PGK, which is the
functional currency of the PNG subsidiary to which these
transactions relate.

As at 31 December 2013, certain financial assets of the Group
are denominated in RMB, which expose the Company to
foreign currency risk. The carrying amounts of the Group's
RMB denominated monetary assets at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

RMB AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

MARKET RISK (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the RMB.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5%
(2012: 5%) increase and decrease in HK$ against the relevant
foreign currency. A 5% (2012: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting period
for a 5% (2012: 5%) change in foreign currency rates.

A positive number/negative number (i.e. in bracket) below
indicate an increase/decrease in pre-tax profit when the HK$
weaken 5% (2012: 5%) against the relevant currency. For a 5%
(2012: 5%) strengthening of HK$ against the relevant currency,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit.

Increase/decrease in pre-tax profit

Interest rate risk

The Group'’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's bank balances
with floating interest rates which expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. Loan and interest receivables,
convertible instruments designated as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, note payable and borrowings at
fixed rate exposes the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

The interest rates of interest-bearing financial assets and
borrowings of the Group are disclosed in Notes 21, 23, 29 and
30, respectively. The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. However, management monitors
the Group's interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

7.

T A& A3 o0, R A

e M HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z—=F+-"A=1+—HIFE

R EEEERBEER @)

35 ELR ()
S m g (4E)
REETEZXARB ZINERRTE -

TR BN E BB T H AR AN 1205 5%

ZE—ZF 5%) ZHRE o 5% (ZE—=
F:5%)BATFEEEABANIEHMINER
BRIFTIRAZBREL R R ERERES
BIET] R 2 NS H R B T - BURE
DR BIEAINEFHEC REEFEKIER -
Mo B s BiR 2 B IR N H i I8,
5% (ZZE— 4 : 5%) #EITHEE -

T2 E8 B8 (BIAERER) BRES
TTHBAEEREESS(—T——F:5%)8
B DS M AR - B T AR E R IHE
5%(—F——4F :5%) Rl@¥afELR
FRAROTE -

RMB impact
ARB S
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
21 21
Fil = @ B
AEEHYHZ TSN EEHAM T E L LA
SEZFRRITHES  SAKEERHRSNR

ERIRAR o EAEEERRAL - TR
TAGEEARATEEBERIIES S
BE) ENEEREESAEETHAT
EFIRER -

REEGFESRMEERERZFED BIHK
FE21-23 293035 - AEEE AL E
FIREHRER - AT - BEREEERAEE
FlERR - WHREHREREREREKNF
KRR o

APEBELRARAR IF—=45% 97



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ire M ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-T—=—F+-A=-+—BHLEE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
MARKET RISK (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other

R EEEERBEER @)

35 ELR ()

= m g (48)

BN E DT
TRETEMBEMBEBERTET A
BAME N RSB A B GRE -

variables held constant, of the Group's net profit.

2013 —E_=%

2012 —E—F

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risks.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risks at the reporting date. If the
prices of the respective equity instruments had been 5%
(2012: 5%) higher/lower, pre-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2013 would increase/decrease by HK$8,708,000
(2012: increase/decrease by HK$1,049,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of investment held for trading and listed
equity securities of available-for-sale financial assets.
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interest rate pre-tax
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at 31
December 2013 and 31 December 2012 in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to the loan and interest receivables and trade
and other receivables. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
Group has established policies and systems for monitoring
and control of credit risk. The management has delegated
different divisions responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring processes to
ensure that follow up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, management reviews the recoverable
amount of loan and interest receivables and trade and other
receivables individually or collectively at each reporting date
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, management considers
that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty, by geographical region and by industry sector.
As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s concentration of credit
risk by geographical location is Hong Kong, which accounted
for 100% (2012: 100%) of the total loan and interest
receivables and trade and other receivables.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, no impairment
loss in respect of loan and interest receivables has been
recognised (2012: HK$18,294,000). The Directors consider the
credit risk is under control since the management exercise
due care and check the financial background of these debtors
on a regular basis.

In respect of the loan and interest receivables arising from the
Group's money lending business, 22% (2012: 29%) of the total
gross loan and interest receivables as at 31 December 2013
was due from the Group's largest customer and 77% (2012:
83%) of the total loan receivables as at 31 December 2013 was
due from the Group's five largest customers for the Group's
money lending business.

The credit risks for bank balances are considered minimal as
such amounts are placed with banks with good credit ratings.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group aims at maintaining a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through maintaining sufficient cash
and cash equivalents. Details of the Group's amounts due to
directors, note payable, interest payable and borrowings are
disclosed in respective notes. The Directors have reviewed
the Group's working capital and capital expenditure
requirements and determined that the Group has no
significant liquidity risk.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities in
accordance with the earliest date on which the Group would
be required to pay.

The maturity analysis for other non-derivative financial

liabilities is prepared based on the scheduled repayment
dates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z—=F+-"A=1+—HIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7. BIXEREEBEREE®)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

LIQUIDITY RISK (Continued) RBEERERE(E)

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To ZERBEMNBEACHEESMRE - WHERE
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the A28 BIRBIIRSETI ARNHEHKRZF
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at KRihag B -

the end of the reporting period.

Weighted On demand Total
average or within undiscounted Carrying
interest rate one year  cash flows amounts
& BRER REH

FHF|=R F-Fh RERELE fREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T

At 31 December 2013 R-E—-=%

+=A=+-A

Other payables and accruals HinENFENREAER | N/AFER 1,353 1,353 1,353
Interest payable ERFE N/A FEH 1,130 1,130 1,130
Borrowings f&E 10% 67,066 67,066 65,000
69,549 69,549 67,483

At 31 December 2012 RZZT——4F

+=ZRA=+—8

Other payables and accruals HiENFIAREER N/A i 1,880 1,880 1,880
Amounts due to directors ENEZFHE N/A RN EH 154 154 154
Note payable B RIE 10% 10,529 10,529 10,000
Interest payable FERTA S N/A T3 3,334 3,334 3,334
15,897 15,897 15,368
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR R

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE-_Z—=F+-_A=-+—HLLFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7. BIEEEEEENRKE®)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

FAIR VALUE ANEE

This note provides information about how the Group AR EEAERNNEETSEREE
determines fair values of various financial assets. ZRAFEEZER -

Fair value of the Group's financial assets that are KEFSHEET N FHEGEER N FHEE
measured at fair value on a recurring basis B

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair REFBHDSHEE IR EREHKRILAF
value at the end of each reporting period. The following table BitE - TRIBHEUEBTHESHEEY
gives information about how the fair values of these financial NEEZ AR (R 2GERN RETB#E A
assets are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) 2ig) o

and inputs used).

Fair value as at

RUT Bz AFE
31 December 31 December Fair value  Valuation technique(s)
Financial assets 2013 2012 hierarchy  and key input(s)
—2-=F —F-—_F HERMK

tREE +=A=t-H TZA=t—HB AVESRN IEBARE

Listed equity securities classified as Assets — Assets — Level T Quoted bid prices in
available-for-sale financial assets approximately approximately £ an active market
in the consolidated statement of HK$174,165,000 HK$5,922,000 REBTHAREANE
financial position BE— BE—

REAMBRARZIBAYHRLE 417416500087 415,922,000/ T
TREEZ FTRAES

Listed equity securities classified as Assets — Nil Assets — Level T Quoted bid prices in
investment held for trading in the BE—&E approximately Z£—  anactive market
consolidated statement of financial HK$15,050,000 WERMISMIMEAE
position BE—

RERMBRRBER D BREE #715,050,0007 7
RHREZ L HRAES

Redeemable convertible notes Assets — Nil Assets — Level 2 Discounted cash flow and
classified as convertible instruments BE—& approximately F-H Black-Scholes option pricing
designated as financial assets at HK$104,712,000 model. Contractual cash flow
fair value through profit or loss BE— are discounted at the interest
in the consolidated statement of #104,712,000 87T rates that were appropriate to
financial position the riskiness of the

RERRBRABRAERATHRRITA convertible notes
(RERBERATEERBRIIRLZ ERRERERBNR —
SREE)IBEATARER HRMBETERN &1

ReReiREa R
FRREBEE ZHRHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

e e

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z—=F+-"A=1+—HIFE

7. BXRRBREEEERBEEE)

nﬂ'\

FAIR VALUE (Continued) DNFEE)

Fair value of the Group's financial assets that are AEFTHEES A FEDFERAFER
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued) 2(58)

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 in the RAEERBEEE £—0% E-HNE
current and prior years. =R A o

The fair values of the financial assets included in the Level 2 HALNE-_SER e REEATEIIE

category above have been determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on a discounted
cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the

BEERMRBESREIN 2 ERARTEER
WETF  WARRKZHFTEERR A
BE/RRIZRAHIE -

discount rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties.

NHERER

Fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
e ot E= @st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TAET TR
2013 —E-=F
Available-for-sale financial assets At HESREE 174,165 = = 174,165

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F— E_M FE=, et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT RV TR
2012 —E——fF
Available-for-sale financial assets L ESREE 5,922 - - 5,922
Investment held for trading RIERHIRE 15,050 - - 15,050
Convertible instruments designated ~ AJ#1f¢ T B (467F A%
as financial assets at fair value RNEEFEBERTIER
through profit or loss ZEREE) - 104,712 - 104,712
20,972 104,712 - 125,684
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-T—=—F+-A=-+—BHLEE

8.

104

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the gross proceed received and
receivable from the business of money lending and provision
of credit, provision of corporate secretarial and consultancy
services and securities trading during the year. There was no
turnover generated from forestry business during the years
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012. The following is an
analysis of the Group's turnover:

Interest income from loan receivables

Consultancy income

Gross proceeds from disposal of
investment held for trading

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board"”), being the chief operating decision
maker, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
goods delivered or services provided. No operating segments
identified by the chief operating decision maker have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the
Group. Specifically, the Group's reportable and operating
segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

1. Money lending — business of money lending
and provision of credit
2. Consultancy — provision of corporate secretarial
services and consultancy services
3. Securities — trading of securities and
investments investment in long-term
securities
4. Forestry business — forest logging and harvesting

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

e E 2 F B UA

RIS A

HERERZREME
FORMEEE

—E S

LEBEFAKREBER  F8 - RHOEW
ERFBARBULELFEEXH 2R E
WHSHRERE B2 _FT—=Fr_F
——HF+-A=T—BILFE  HMEBL
BETEXBE UTKREAKEZEXED
17

2013 2012
—E—=F —E 5
HK$'000 HK$000
FTEx FHET
19,955 29,981
7,657 5,211
17,170 13,448
44,782 48,640

DEEH

MARAREFR(EFR) NEBLER
FE)ERIEERORRFENERRLE
KA BB SR GRS 2 5 - RER
ARETLENER - HEEEELBRR
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BT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results

by reportable and operating segments:

Year ended 31 December 2013

Turnover — gross proceeds

Segment revenue
From external customers

Segment results
Unallocated corporate expenses
Unallocated corporate income

Finance costs

Profit before tax

BZ_g2-=F
+ZA=1+—-HILEE

BEE—MEHRER

HEkE

RESMREFR

BXE

5

APBARFX
2o WNCIEON
REMAK

BR AT 4 A

Money Consultancy  Securities
lending

f&

HK$'000
TET

Money Consultancy
lending

4 £

B E

HK$'000

—
)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-Z—=F1+-A=1+—RLFE

TEER @)

TN REE

AEEMY WS R EBIRASB/RELEDED
W

Forestry

business Total

BHARE BERE  FMER @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TET TET

services investments

Securities Forestry

services investments business

Year ended 31 December 2012

Turnover — gross proceeds

Segment revenue
From external customers

Segment results

Unallocated corporate expenses

Unallocated corporate income

Change in fair value of derivative
financial assets

Finance costs

Profit before tax

EXRE M5 REE

DRk

RESMREP

NS

NEEE

PERDAFAX
ol WNCILON
—BITESRMAEL
RYEE
REKA

S St

BR AT A

TAT

29,981

5211 13,448 48,640

29,981

5211 (472) 34,720

91,938

(564) 236 (2,354) 89,256

(19,909)
254

(4,000)
(3,334)

62,267
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-_A=-+—HLLFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9.
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (Continued)
Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were no inter-
segment sales in the current year (2012: Nil).

The accounting policies of the operating segment are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in Note 3.
Segment results represent the profit earned by (loss from)
each segment without allocation of central administration
costs, directors’ emoluments, change in fair value of derivative
financial assets, bank interest income, certain other income
and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the Board
for the purposes of the resources allocation and assessment
of segment performance.

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and
liabilities by reportable and operating segments:

Money Consultancy

lending
f&

HK$'000
ThR

At 31 December 2013 RZE-=f+ZHA=1+-H

ASSETS iE

Segment assets NEEE
Unallocated corporate assets AABREEE
Total assets BEHE
LIABILITIES af&

Segment liabilities PEERE
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROBAFAR
Total liabilities BEERE
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FMBWA ~ HETHEMBARBEKA) - It
T ERDEMFHEDBERRMAEESE
HzHA e

THEERAE
AEERAEHREEEDBEND ZEERA
BT -
Securities Forestry

Total

)
HK$'000
TET

business

e
HK$'000
TER

investments
EERE
HK$'000
TEx

services
B R
HK$'000

TEx




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z—=F+-"A=1+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. oEER®
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued) PEEERERE(HE)
Money Consultancy  Securities Forestry
lending services investments business Total
BE HARE EHFRE  AMER @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT THET THET THET THET
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+-A=1+—H
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 145,117 2,073 222,711 306,288 676,189
Unallocated corporate assets RAPBAEEE 29,269
Total assets BEwE 705,458
LIABILITIES aff
Segment liabilities HBEE 27 10 - 976 1,013
Unallocated corporate liabilities RAEARIBE 14,358
Total liabilities BEESE 15,371
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and MERSBERBALAOESBERME :

allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other o FTEEENDEEE&LEDEE W
than property, plant and equipment, certain other BB K& BT B U EIEN &
receivables and certain bank balances and cash; and BTHRITEBRIRESBI » &

. all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other . FMEREEANTEKEKEE N WHER
than amounts due to directors, certain other payables, EENIE AT EMENRIE - BN
note payable and certain interest payable. EBERAETRERSF SRR
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-T—=—F+-A=-+—BHLEE

9.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Amounts included in the measure of
segment profit or loss or segment assets:

Additions to available-for-sale
financial assets

Gain on disposal of convertible instruments
designated as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Change in fair value of convertible
instruments designated as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Reversal of impairment loss on loan
and interest receivables

Interest income from loan receivables

Interest income from convertible
instruments

Dividend income

Foreign exchange loss

Interest expenses on borrowings

Amounts regularly provided to the chief
operating decision maker but not
included in the measure of segment profit
or loss or segment assets:

Interest expenses on note payable

Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment

Additions to property, plant and equipment

Foreign exchange gain

Bank interest income

9. PEEHRG®

ANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_F-=H1-A=1—-HILFE

Money Consultancy

lending
f&

HK$'000

TER

SIAGHEDERHRERA
NREEZER:

EMAHHESREE

HETRRIA(EER
HAHERBERIIR
LERAE) i

THARTA(EEREATE
BRBRIIRERAE)
ZATERY

RUERLNEHE
BiEgE

EUERZMBIA

ARRTAZMERA

REKA
35832
EEZHERX

THRATREERRERN
[BY & A ENRET
JERANBEE
Pk B

ERNFEZMERX
0% BERRERE

RENE  BERR
36
RITHEMA

Securities

services investments

BHRE
HK$'000
TER

#5RE
HK$'000
TR

Forestry

business Unallocated

AMER KA

HK$'000  HK$'000
TET T

Total
EEH)
HK$'000
TER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
“ra SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z—=F+-"A=1+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DEERG®
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) HitnEER (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE—F——F+_A=+—HILFZF

Money Consultancy ~ Securities Forestry
lending services investments  business Unallocated
e ARG EFRE  RHXE A0k

HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
Tér  TAx BT TAT  TAR

Amounts included in the measure of SN BRNREER
segment profit or loss or segment assets: ~ DEEEZSE -

Additions to available-for-sale Bt eREE

financial assets - - 90,000 - - 90,000
Additions to convertible instruments REARTIA(BEA

designated as financial assets at RATEERERTIR

fair value through profit or loss LEREE) - - 95,000 - - 95,000
Change in fair value of convertible RRIAGETARATE

instruments designated as financial assets ~ EBRRIIEZ 2BHEE)

at fair value through profit or loss ZDVHER) - - 9712) - - 9712)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale MRLESREEY

financial assets REEE - - 19,278 - - 19.278
Change in fair value of investment held BERSGREZ A TEE

for trading - - (3,030) - - (3,030)
Reversal of impairment loss on loan EREFRAEHEEERE

and interest receivables 83,717) - - - - (83,717)
Impairment loss recognised in respect EREAERETRME

ofloan and interest receivables REEE 18,294 - - - - 18,294
Share-based payment expenses AR BERA R - - - 1,367 - 1367
Interest income from loan receivables EREZR BB (29.981) - - - - (29.981)
Interest income from convertible MERTEZFIEMA

instruments - - (1,687) - - (1,687)
Dividend income BEMA - - (764) - - (764)
Interest expenses on borrowings BE7REEY 200 _ _ _ _ 200
Amounts regularly provided to the chief ~ FHMT ELERRARE

operating decision maker but not B EI A EHEET

included in the measure of segment YHBINREE

profit or loss or segment assets: LEE:
Interest expenses on note payable ERZEFERR - - - - 3334 3334
Depreciation on property, n%  BREREZERE

plant and equipment - - - - 913 913
Additions to property, plant and equipment  AEWE - BE R fE - - - - 3315 3315
Change in fair value of a derivative MEsBEEL N TEE

financial asset - - - - 4,000 4,000
Foreign exchange gain B M - - - - (14) (14)
Bank interest income RITHESHA - - - - @) 3
Income tax credit i zind - - - - (12 (12)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-T—=—F+-A=-+—BHLEE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. oEERG®
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION EER
The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and PNG. REBREE N ORI ANTo L LR o
The geographical information about the Group's revenue ﬁﬁﬁxi BEEEI/INARTPUZE Z#IBEE Ty
from external customers is presented based on the location LB EY - XEBEERBEEER
of the operations. Information about the Group’s non-current (TMEREZEERTE) IUEEZHIEVE
assets, excluded those financial instruments, is based on the Bk o

location of the assets.

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
REMREF Z W= FIRBEE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—_E2—= —E—_4F —_g—= =T _F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T T FHET FHIT
Hong Kong 55 29,693 34,720 1,394 2,575
PNG EmaEANE - - 306,261 306,288
29,693 34,720 307,655 308,863
INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS EBRXEEFEHR
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years PAEREFEMAEE BN EER10% 2B P
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group is as W T :
follows:

2013 2012

—Eg—= —F——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FB FHET

Customer A (Revenue from money lending) PR (EEKE) N/A T~E R * 15,386

Customer B (Revenue from money lending) BREZ(EEWE) 7,559 5,851

Customer C (Revenue from money lending) EEFR(EEKR) 4,195 N/A i A
* The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total * BRI E AL B E R 10% 20 -

revenue of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z—=F+-"A=1+—HIFE

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. @E KA
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
Interest on: UT&EBZFE
— note payable — B2 96 3,334
Interest on (included in cost of sales): TR IEZFE
(GFASHERA) :
— borrowings wholly repayable — BR—EREHEEZ
within one year EBE 1,130 200
1,226 3,534
11. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 1. Httg A R Wz
2013 2012
—E—= = _F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&TT
Bank interest income RITF B U A 2 3
Consideration from granting of call option KEROREDREZRE
(Note 21) (Ktat21) = 4,800
Interest income from convertible instruments REAHRE T A2 FE WA 6,315 1,687
Dividend income i B A 9,076 764
Others Hib = 251
15,393 7,505
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l\VT\

B PR

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BE-T——F+-A=+—BILEE
2. INCOME TAX CREDIT 12. FAIBHER

112

Hong Kong Profits Tax FBNEH
— Overprovision in prior year — BRI

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

No tax is payable on the profit for the year arising in Hong
Kong since the assessable profit is wholly absorbed by the tax
losses brought forward. Tax losses carried forward amount to
approximately HK$5,985,000 (2012: HK$15,466,000).

No provision for People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
corporate income tax has been made during the year as the
subsidiaries operated in PRC had no assessable profit for the
year (2012: Nil).

No provision for PNG profits tax has been made during the
year as the subsidiaries operated in PNG had no assessable
profit for the year (2012: Nil).

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

2013 2012
—_=Z—= —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000
FRET TR

- (12)

EBRE %ﬁmytﬂﬂliﬁﬂéﬁf%mmﬂ
1£165%tE

A E SRR A AART BB BB 2 8UK
MB AT RNREBATEERF S mTE -
AR A B 455,985,000 L (ZF—=
£ 1 15,466,000 7T) °

HREREARAME ([HE])LE 2B
RERFALEERDGEN - MERILER
FRMEMASHA BB (T ——F  #) -

HARESHDHENDLEE 2B ARNSE
P SRR - ME R BB #
HEATNERARERE (T ——F  ®) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-Z—=F1+-A=1+—RLFE

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued) 12. FREBE R (@)
The income tax credit for the years can be reconciled to the FRFAETRIR G A AR A 1B RTE R T A
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or SEAEER IR

loss as follows:

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Profit before tax FRBE AR R 62,267
Tax at the domestic income tax rate RS E16.5%
of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) (ZE—Z—F 1 16.5%)
STHEZBIA 10,274
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TR 2 B 2
for tax purpose 5,670
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose HERIWA 2 T T2 (15,862)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences KR A] F0T: & S = &8
not recognised 2B E 48
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERHEBBZHETE 172
Utilisation of tax losses previously BABERERTIEER
not recognised (303)
Tax effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries REMEEEREE 2B
operating in other jurisdiction NRATRME 2 M2 1
Overprovision in prior year FFBEERE (12)
Income tax credit FriSBiiER (12)
Details of deferred tax were set out in Note 31. RETIE R BEEMIEE 31 ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-_A=-+—HLLFE

13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13. FRER

2013 2012
—E—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FRET THETT

Profit for the year has been arrived EaRp R DEECEi]S

at after charging (crediting): GEA) AT B IBZIZER
Auditor’s remuneration =BT BN 2

— Audit service — ZEARTS 890

— Other service — HA R 449
Total auditor’s remuneration ZEREN I 2 4B k8 1,339
Directors’ emoluments (Note 14) BE=ME (Wit 14) 2,798
Staff costs (excluding directors’ emoluments) ETIRAN(TEREEENE)

— Salaries, wages and other benefits —%5e -  TENREMET 5,929

— Retirement benefit scheme contribution — RAREFEEIHR 325
Total staff costs (excluding BIXNABE(TREESHE)

directors’ emolument) 6,254
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% « /S M RETE 913
Net foreign exchange loss (gain) BE H &R (e ) F 8 (14)
Minimum lease payment under operating lease i MIEFEEHEE

in respect of land and buildings ZRIEEEFIA 1,718
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T—=F+-A=1+—RLFE

14. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 14. EERTRARMSE
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ten (2012: EfsENTFTR(ZE——F: +R)ES
ten) Directors were as follows: 2a ML -
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE-_E—=fF+-H=+—HIEE

Salaries, Retirement

wages and benefit

other scheme
Fees benefits contribution Total
e I8 BAKEF
e KRHEMER FTEIHM “st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TERT THET THET

Executive directors:
Ms. Jia Hui
Mr. Huang Chuan Fu
Mr. Jiang Yi Ren
Mr. Liang Jian Hua
Mr. Ng Kwok Fai®

Non-executive director:
Mr. Chan Kin Sang*

Independent non-executive
directors:
Mr. Zheng Zhen®
Mr. Wong Chun Hung
Mr. Cheng Po Yuen?
Mr. Wong Sze Kai?

BITEE
EELLT
HEREL
B—Ex4t
REER L

HHTEF -
BRI

BUIPTESE

RS
RBEHERE
BRI

BERELE?

%
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-T—=—F+-A=-+—BHLEE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' 14. EERTHEARZME @)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—_FE——F+_-_HA=+—HIFE
Salaries, Retirement
wages and benefit
other scheme
Fees benefits  contribution Total
e IA RRAER
e  REMER BE 5 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TR FHT THT
Executive directors: HITEE -
Ms. Jia Hui EEw+ - - - -
Mr. Huang Chuan Fu BERESE - - - -
Mr. Jiang Yi Ren Bk - - - -
Mr. Liang Jian Hua RRERELL - - - -
Mr. Ng Kwok Fai¢ REELE A 1,440 - - 1,440
Non-executive director: FHITEE -
Mr. Chan Kin Sang* PREEAE S A 600 425 - 1,025
Independent non-executive BUIRTEE -
directors:
Mr. Li Sui Yang' FHFEE 87 - - 87
Mr. Wong Chun Hung EHRERSE 120 - - 120
Mr. Cheng Po Yuen? BIRTTEAES 120 - - 120
Mr. Wong Sze Kai? BERELE? 6 - - 6

2,373 425 - 2,798

Resigned on 21 September 2012
Appointed on 14 December 2012
Resigned on 29 April 2013
Resigned on 30 April 2013
Appointed on 10 May 2013

RZZE—ZFNAAZ+—HEE
RZE—ZF+-ATHAEEE
—E-ZFNA-TABBRE
—E-=FMNA=THEE
—E-ZFRATHELRT
e

o v A w N -
o o A w N =

JiS
JiS

Resigned on 16 July 2013 ZFE+ATRAEE
Apart from the Directors, the Group has not classified any REFIN  AEEREBEE_Z—=FKk=_F
other person as a chief executive during the years ended 31 ——F+ZA=1t—"BIFEWTESIME
December 2013 and 2012. No Directors waived any AT AETEER - RREEESEZ
emoluments in both years. REMESHE -

116  Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, one (2012: two) was Director whose emolument is
included in the disclosures in Note 14. The emoluments of
the remaining four (2012: three) highest paid individuals were

as follows:

ire B HmRM R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z—=F+-"A=1+—HIFE

15. EEME
rEERERRFALF —R(Z2—Z
FWMEZ)RBEE  EMSENWE 1428
BEEFP - BRTHA(ZE—ZF: =F)&
BFATZHEOT

2013 2012

—E—= —EB——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FETT

Salaries, wages and other benefits e TENREMEF 4,171 1,768
Retirement benefit schemes contribution BRIRBFETEI R 60 41
4,231 1,809

Their emoluments fell within the following bands:

WEZMENFLATEHE :

Number of individuals

A
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F
Within Nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 1,000,000%8 7T 2 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 77T 2 1,500,000 7 7T 2 -

During the two years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals and Directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

16. DIVIDEND
No dividend was paid or proposed during 2013, nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting
period (2012: Nil).

REBEZEZE—=Z=FRER=_FT——-F+=A
“t+—BIEREAFERN  AEE@ERTSR
REFALTREELAME  (EAMALRE
B INARE B & 2 RENSEAREREE -

16. B E
RZE—=FATERMNREFRTRE -
BREBRARNTERBZRTTAKRE (=
T——F 8|,

ATAREERARAT IB—=FFR 117
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B PR

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BEC

17.

118

—=Et+B=—ALLFE
EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

17.

BRER
ARRHERARESREA R EERN IR
BETBURRTE

2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Earnings for the purpose of basic and RET E B IRER L #E
diluted earnings per share ARz BF 75,597 62,283

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic and
diluted earnings per share

The denominator for the purpose of calculating basic and
diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2012 has been restated to reflect the share consolidation and
rights issue (with bonus issue) during the year ended 31
December 2013 as detailed in Note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share
options because the exercise price of those share options was
higher than the average market price of shares for both 2013
and 2012.

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

2012
—E——4F
‘000

FIR
(Restated)
(&25))

R EBRERREERH
ZE BB B

1,250,456 277,877

HEBE-T - —#t-A=t-ALEE
2 GREAREERFFTES SR EF - X

FMEE-—T—=F+_A=+—HILFE
2D A G RARRGEAI IR T - FBERER
B FIRERMFE33 -

AR -—E—=ER -—E——EWMEEEARNL

DA ZWAITEBEAETEES NN T
mE  HETEERBEERANTERREH
BRI EATIE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
“ra SRR MR

CosT
At 1 January 2012
Additions

At 31 December 2012 and
1 January 2013
Additions

At 31 December 2013

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2012
Provided for the year

At 31 December 2012 and
1 January 2013
Provided for the year

At 31 December 2013

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2013

At 31 December 2012

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

w3 7

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE—-Z%

—=F+T-A=+—BIFE

18. W% - BERRHE

Leasehold

improvement

HAmRRE

HK$'000

T

Furniture,

fittings and

equipment
B B
S
HK$'000
T

Motor
vehicles Total

e @it
HK$'000 HK$'000
57 57

R

R-E——F—H—H - 609 - 609
RE 2,500 37 778 3,315
RZZE——f+-A=+—80K

—F-=%F—H—H 2,500 646 778 3,924
NE - 29 - 29
AZE-=5+ZA=+-H 2,500 675 778 3,953
ZitiE

R-E——&E—HF—H - (436) - (436)
FNEE (787) (48) (78) (913)
RZE-——F+-A=1+—-HE

—T-=%—-Hf—H (787) (484) (78) (1,349)
FNEE (1,000) (55) (155) (1,210)
R-E-=fF+-HA=1+-H (1,787) (539) (233) (2,559)
REE

R-BE-Zf+=-A=+-H 713 136 545 1,394
RZE——F+-A=1+—H 1,713 162 700 2,575

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of expected
useful life and period of the lease
Furniture, fittings and 20%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

ME  BERREBEZTERAERETE
REFTERFHBR A B EERREE
o

AR FES

& TEHR] e A
HEFHzBEE
B KERERE  20%

E 20%

ATEEEERERAT IZ—=FFR 119
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-T—=—F+-A=-+—BHLEE

19. GOODWILL 19. BE
HK$'000
TFETT
cosT R
At 1 January 2012 WR-ZZE——%—HA—H -
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 39) W B B B8 1 B AR E A (YAt 39) 306,019
At 31 December 2012 and RN_E——F+-_A=+—BXK
31 December 2013 —E—=+=-BA=+—H 306,019
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT RiHRE
At 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012 and RZZBE——F—HF—H -
31 December 2013 —E——-_F+A=t—8K
—E-=F+=HA=+—H -
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=%+-H=+—8H 306,019
At 31 December 2012 R-E——F+-_A=+—H 306,019

120

For the year ended 31 December 2012, addition of goodwill
amounted to approximately HK$306,019,000 was arisen from
the acquisition of 30% equity interest of Profit Grand Group
(the "Acquisition”) (Note 39). Profit Grand Group has been
granted the right to operate sawmills, harvest trees and sell
logs, in the forest located in PNG with ground area of
approximately 65,800 hectares (the “Project Area”).

Goodwill was allocated to the Group's cash-generating unit
identified according to the operating segment. The goodwill
as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2013 was
attributable to the cash-generating unit that comprises the
forestry business segment.

The recoverable amount of the forestry business segment
cash-generating unit was based on value in use and was
determined with reference to the valuation report issued by
Roma Appraisals.

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

HE-_ T —HF+-_A=+—HItFE &
I B8 Profit Grand & [# 2 30% e 4 ([ W ig =
18 |) i B 2 42 N %Y 306,019,000 7 7T (M 5
39) ° Profit Grand & BIJER T #E R Al £ B2 /R
IR ETAS N TR IR N FE 4) 65,800 AE ([TH B 8
B |) 2 M EIRARRE ~ AR RSHERK o

BESREERBEED BRI ZAEER S
EABg R-E——F+_A=+t—H0K
T+ A=+ RAZBENREHE
RAFRMEE DI RS ELEBNA -

AMEB DB ReEEEM 2 I RES 5
TIREMREBENE  UKS2EEFHHED
ZIEERSKETE -



19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODWILL (Continued)

Value in use was determined by discounting the future cash
flows generated from the continuing use of the cash-
generating unit. The calculation of the value in use was based
on the following key assumptions:

o Cash flows were projected based on financial budget
approved by management covering a 28-year (2012:
29-year) period.

° Revenue was projected based on management's
expectations for market development and the
harvesting plan.

o Timber product average domestic price growth at 5.66%
(2012: 5.3%) per annum and average export price
growth at 3.01% (2012: 2.1%) per annum.

. Up to an estimated growth rate of 123% (2012: 123%)
revenue generated from reforestation.

. A pre-tax discount rate of 16.33% (2012: 15.54%) based
on the data and factors relevant to the economy in
PNG, the forest industry, and the timber products in the
PNG.

° All relevant legal approvals and business certificates or
licenses to operate the business in the localities in which
the Group operates or intends to operate would be
officially obtained and renewed upon expiry.

The recoverable amount of the forestry business segment was
determined to be higher than its carrying amount. Therefore,
the Directors considered no impairment on goodwill is
required for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 31
December 2013.

19.

ire B HmRM R

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE-Z—=F+-"A=1+—HIFE
BE ()
EREEDRMEAREFELRRCELSE
ﬁZ*Xﬁ%ﬁ%#i FREBEEDRAT

FEBRKFE

e WEeRENREEEMEZIHKES
BE G RE -+ NF(ZE——F:
ZE) HAR -

o WEHEDNEEEEHMHER LK
B 2 FEAELIER -

o AMEMZFHBEATNZERIZFE

R5.66%(—_F— % :53%) m¥F
HEOEBRANIZFERINS(ZZ
—ZF 1 21%) °

. iﬁﬁ%%?i% S fEEH R R &
%123% (—ZF— —45 1 123%) °

o BEBIBRIA R1633%( T — —F:
15.54%) Ty 1R 5 B2 B0 77 00 37 46 N gn 48
B~ PREE DA K BB A 2R T A5 A R AR AROR
MERAB BEREAXTE -

o EAEEFAAMBATERERERH
RAARBNEBAAERELE I HE
REEB AR - WREmEER -

RMEB DB IR ESBEE RS
HiRE(E - At EERA/REBE_F—
Ft+-_A=+—-BR-ZE—=%+-A
=+ RIEFEHAETHERE -

I\%
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

BE-—T-—G+-A=+—BIEFE
20. DEPOSIT FOR ACQUISITION OF LOGGING 20. BB KR ARESHTEZRS

CONCESSION

On 30 May 2011, I-Sky Natural has entered into a project
agreement with Vabari Development Corporation Limited (the
“Landowners”) for a forest development project in which
forest logs will be harvested for the purposes of sale and
export and other related activities incidental to and arising
out of the project in the Project Area. Pursuant to the project
agreement, |-Sky Natural could enjoy the logging concession
from the Landowners for a term of 99 years. |-Sky Natural shall
pay the Landowners required premiums, royalties and levies
and pay to the Landowners 3% share of its annual net profit
before tax, from all agricultural projects I-Sky Natural
undertakes within the Project Area. The balance represented
a non-refundable deposit of approximately HK$242,000
(equivalent to PGK75,000) (2012: HK$269,000 (equivalent to
PGK75,000)) for acquisition of logging concession had been
paid by the |-Sky Natural to the Landowners during the year
ended 31 December 2011.

MRZE——FHH="TH - I-Sky Natural &2
Vabari Development Corporation Limited
(T#F ) B —IBRNIE B HEFFRMIARK
AR Z MR8 € I D A E2TE B ABRE 275
RBEMZFAERMIARRFAR HE - RiIB
ZIE B % 0 I-Sky Natural J Z A E R
AR E BB N NF o ISky
Natural M E XN PAFHEE - FraFEE
FREREE » LA KA % FE X FI-Sky Natural
BFEHREAHE W?Eﬁﬁ’\]ﬁﬁﬁ%%lﬁ B S
BRELATALFI 3% o #8278 |-Sky Natural IRE 2
—E——F+= H T—RHIEFERESK
AEFEAZFEINZAARBTE2L
242,000 7T (FHE 7 75,000 &E4) (ZF—=
e+ 269,00078 7T (HHE X 75,000 54))

21. CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED 21. I ERTAE(BBEARATEESR
AS FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE BRIBECESMEE)

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2013
—E—=4F

2012
—E——F
HK$'000
FHTT

HK$’000
FET

BERBNTERB
BalllR e REE
— A8 —FZ
B ES -

Financial assets designated at FVTPL

— Convertible bonds mature over one year
104,712
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED
AS FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

On 26 June 2012 and 4 September 2012, the Company
entered into a subscription agreement and supplemental
subscription agreement, with China Environmental Energy
Investment Limited (“China Environmental”), whose shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange, in subscribing convertible
bonds, with total principal amount of HK$95,000,000 with
interest of 8% per annum, issued by China Environmental at
the subscription price of HK$95,000,000 (the “Convertible
Bonds”). The subscription was completed and the
Convertible Bonds were issued to the Company on 12
October 2012. The Convertible Bonds can be converted into
new ordinary shares of China Environmental, limited to 29.9%
of the issued share capital of China Environmental, at any
time within a period of eighteen months following the date of
issue at a conversion price of HK$0.592 per share (adjusted to
HK$0.148 per share with effect from 18 July 2013 due to the
share subdivision of China Environmental). The Company has
not converted any Convertible Bonds into new ordinary share
of the China Environmental during the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012.

As at 31 December 2012, the fair value of the Convertible
Bonds have been estimated by Roma Appraisals using
valuation techniques based on quoted market prices of the
underlying listed securities.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, a fair value gain of
approximately HK$35,491,000 (2012: HK$9,712,000) was
recognised in profit or loss.

On 12 October 2012, the Group has entered into a call option
deed with an independent third party (the “Call Option
Holder") in granting a call option (the “Call Option”) for the
Call Option Holder to purchase up to HK$60,000,000 principal
amount of the Convertible Bonds at the exercise price of
120% of the principal amount of the Convertible Bonds. The
consideration of the Call Option was HK$4,800,000, which was
recognised as other income in profit or loss (Note 11) during
the year ended 31 December 2012. The maturity date of the
Call Option was three business days prior to the maturity date
of the Convertible Bonds.

21.

APEBEERARAT IE—=FFRH

ire B HmRM R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z—=F+-"A=1+—HIFE

THRERTIA(BEERRATFEER
BRI EMERE) @

RZBE——FAAAZ+AAAERZ=ZZE—Z=-FN1
AA - AAEEAPBIRRERIRESRA
A (THERIR] - HIRM AR L) RIS
RBHRERETRE R - UAREREIRR
1% B (E95,000,0008 LRI ITA S B 5
95,000,000/ 7T B W #F B 8 [E » a] 2 f% f&
E([aglER]) R E——F+A+=
H REFHEEZK BB ESBDET
FARQE - AJMRESATNREITHBE TN
8 A N R EIZ L RESRR0.592% T (A
FERERMHFAME =t A+ N
BRAEEEM0.1488) LI AP RIRR
FrgmEkk REATFRREREFHITRAZ
299% RRNRIREE_ZTE—=ZFR_F
——F+ - A=+ —HIEFETRGT A
MR EH AR AR EIRRTE B -

RZZE——F+A=+—0 " ARES
ZAFETRZESHEIRA/E LW E S ®
MBS EREITER

HE-_Z—=F+-A=1+—HIFE " &
35,491,000 ;o ( =& — — 4 : 9,712,000/%5
TT) Z A ERFE DN IERER -

RZE——F+A+-H KEEE—ZF
VE=F([REHEREAD R RER
([ D RTRIE I - DMER
BHESAEAZRTEE(NURRESES
B2 120%) i B AN & # & % 4 60,000,000 78
TR BRRES - RBEHRIREA
48000008 T HE-_ET——F+_ A
—t+t—HEREXERBEEMI AW
11) o R ZZEA AT BRESZF
HIHAT =A% %A -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-T—=—F+-A=-+—BHLEE

21.

22.

124

CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED
AS FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

As at 12 October 2012 and 31 December 2012, and during the
year ended 31 December 2013, the fair value of the Call
Option has been estimated by Roma Appraisals using Black-
Scholes option pricing model. However, as the fair values
were minimal, the Directors considered that no such financial
instrument should be recognised.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Call Option
Holder fully exercised the Call Option to purchase up to
HK$60,000,000 principal amount of the Convertible Bonds at
the exercise price of 120% of the principal amount of the
Convertible Bonds at a total consideration of HK$72,000,000
in cash.

On 5 November 2013, the Company entered into a placing
agreement to place the Convertible Bonds with the principal
amount of HK$35,000,000 (the “Remaining Convertible
Bonds”). On 20 December 2013, the Remaining Convertible
Bonds have been successfully placed to an independent third
party at the consideration of HK$98,000,000 in cash with
transaction cost of approximately HK$2,450,000.

All the Convertible Bonds have been disposed through the
exercise of option and placing in which the net gain of
approximately HK$27,347,000 was recognised in profit or loss
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Listed investments EHiRE
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong  —R&B LT 2
MR 75
Unlisted investments FETRE
— Redeemable convertible preference — AHE B A3 R
shares BER

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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THRERTIA(BEERRATFEER
BRI EMERE) @

RZE——F+A+ZBER=_F——F+=
A=+t—HUREZ-_Z—=+_A
=+—H REHEZ2ATFETDBZESTE
FAMANT — AR EEE AR -
A ARAFELTEKX  WEERAD
AEREHAemTE -

BE_ZT—=F+_A=t+—HILFE " R
BHESAAZETERBHEBEASR
% = # 60,000,00078 7T Z AT R AE 55 - 1T
BRABRKESAEER2120%  ERER
IR 4 72,000,000 7T °

R-ZZB—=F+—AFH  AARGIMEE
g LABLE A& 48 %85 35,000,000 7T (A
RBHEEEEITERURBRES 2B TR
SHE) 2 RBRESF N2 —=F+=
RZ+H IR EHFENNEET —2E
SME=F - REAIR£98,0000008TT 0 R
SR #9755 2,450,000 78 7T °

BHE_Z—=F+_A=+—HILFE
ERSRBEFCEBTEBRERE SR
E HEPEREEBAKIZFREY
27,347,000 7T °

22. AHHEEHMEE

2013
—g-=%

2012
T F
HK$'000
TABTT

HK$'000
FET

Notes
HtaF

(a) 174,165 5,922
(b) 90,000 90,000
264,165 95,922




NOTES TO THE CONS

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there had been significant
increase in the market value of the equity investments. Fair value gain of
approximately HK$28,462,000 had been recognised in other

comprehensive income.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, there had been a significant
decline in the market value of the equity investment. The Directors
considered that such a decline indicated that the listed equity
investment had been impaired and an impairment loss of approximately
HK$19,278,000 had been recognised in profit or loss.

On 11 October 2012, Perpetual Master Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, has entered into the subscription agreement
with Million Wealth, which is engaged in money lending business, in
subscribing 90 redeemable convertible preference shares of
HK$1,000,000 each from Million Wealth. The subscription was
completed on 30 November 2012.

The Directors consider that the Group has neither control nor significant
influence over Million Wealth as they have not actively participated in
the operation and policy-making process of Million Wealth. Therefore,
the investment in the redeemable convertible preference shares is
treated as available-for-sale financial asset as a long term investment,
and measured at cost less accumulated impairment at the end of the
reporting period because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
so significant that the Directors are of the opinion that their fair value
cannot be measured reliably. The Directors consider that no impairment

is considered necessary.

(a)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T—=F+-A=1+—RLFE

22. qEHEERMEE (@)

His

BE-T-=FT-A=+—BLFE BAR
A2 ARSI o DT B 4928,462,00078
TERR A R EUE R -

HE-_T——F+-_A=+—BLEFE BEE
BrmMERBRETHR -EFRAE AU THERL
MRAKRE LR RE  ERBRPERNERE
#19,278,000/8 7T ©

RZZE—ZF+A+—H ARAZEHRBLF
Perpetual Master Limited At RE B X B v BE
BAlERI L RBIHE - UMEBEIEREORER
TE{E1,000,000 78 7T 2 7] & [ A #0 AR B 5T A% © 32
FREON-F-_Ft—A=THAREK -

EERA ARNAKEREEG2HEERE Y
RERBEHEBE  WAHESAE LR

BREAZED - Bt TEERARELRZ
KARGEAFRGERAZAIHEESREE  »N
BERRBRARRARETE - LHARARE
RFEGHBEAKN  WHEERA/EEATE
BERSERTE - EERA/BAELRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-T—=—F+-A=-+—BHLEE

23. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 23. EREREAE

Fixed-rate loan and interest receivables FEEEWRERNFE
Less: Accumulated impairment loss B REHREREE

The term of loans entered with customers ranges within one
year. And after monitoring assessment and further
creditworthiness analysis on the debtors, certain loans have
been further extended for not more than one year. All loan
and interest receivables are denominated in HK$. The loan
receivables carry fixed interest rate ranging from 10% to 48%
(2012: 8% to 48%) per annum. An aging analysis of the loan
and interest receivables net of accumulated impairment loss
at the end of the reporting period, based on the loan
agreement commencement date and the date of interest

incurred respectively, is as follows:

2013 2012
—_=Z—= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
261,490 171,706
(39,060) (44,060)
222,430 127,646

BEPIUZERFMNF—FNA - BEH
ALﬁ%guﬁ&ﬁ FERAIE BT

REE—TERETZN—F - IARK
Am&ﬂgﬁM%mﬂﬁofwg R [EE
FRENTI0%E48%(ZF—ZF : 8% 2
48%) - RIFE R MAFME BMEMNEEL
BHDRIEHE - RERRNGRARES
B RKWER LM SERESTOT

0-30 days 0-30H
31-90 days 31-90 H
91-180 days 91-180H
181-365 days 181-365 H
Over 365 days 365 A

126  Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

2013 2012
—_E—=F —E—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F# Tt
150,933 744
7,592 123,606
5,077 126

843 212
57,985 2,958
222,430 127,646
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T-=#+-A=t+—-HILEE
23. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)  23. FEUNEZ &R A& (&)

Set out below is an analysis of loan and interest receivables EmEEERE L ERET LT E SN
that are past due but not impaired: T:
2013 2012
—g—= —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THBT
1-30 days 1-30 H - 226
31-90 days 31-90H 15,682 3,304
91-180 days 91-180 H - 109
181-365 days 181-365 H - 215
Over 365 days 365 AL 4 40
15,686 3,894
Note: As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the amounts which are past due but KtiF : RZE—=FER-_FT——F+_A=+—H8" B2
not impaired are not subject to any collateral. As subsequent BEBESEE 2 RIE AR E IR ] o T
settlements are noted, the Directors considered that no impairment is SRNEBDIEREY BER A BARZZSHH
necessary for these overdue debtors. BEERAMELHE -
The movements in accumulated impairment loss of loan and FEWEREFE Y BHREEBREREHHNT :

interest receivables are as follows:

2013 2012

—E-=F —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHBT

At 1 January w—HA—H 44,060 109,483
Reversal of impairment loss BB EED (5,000) (83,717)
Impairment loss recognised ERREREE - 18,294
At 31 December Wt+—_A=+—8H 39,060 44,060
Included in the above accumulated impairment loss at 31 LR T —=F+A=1T—HB2Z 25"
December 2013 was individually impaired loan and interest TEJE‘E'E@Tﬁﬁﬁ]\ﬁﬁﬂllﬁ}\iZ“ﬁJ VEREN
receivables with a carrying amount of approximately ERERRFE - ERRER 2 REENR
HK$39,064,000 (2012: HK$44,064,000) before impairment 39,064,000/’%%(—5 — 4 1 44,064,0007%5

which have been in financial difficulties. TT) °
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B PR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-T—=—F+-A=-+—BHLEE

23. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES
As at 31 December 2013, loan and interest receivables
amounting to approximately HK$147,460,000 (2012:
HK$49,779,000) were subject to collateral for listed shares with
a fair value of approximately HK$215,877,000 (2012:
HK$36,960,000).

l\VT\

(Continued)

Subsequent to 31 December 2013, loan and interest
receivables amounting to approximately HK$44,169,000 (2012:
HK$44,374,000) were subject to collateral for listed shares
(2012: promissory note issued by a listed company in Hong
Kong amounting to approximately HK$25,000,000 and frozen
cash of that debtor amounting to approximately
HK$44,606,000).

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables FEUTER X
Prepayments TERT IR

Other receivables (Note)

Total trade and other receivables
TG 4B R

EaNITON

Note: As at 31 December 2013, included in other receivables are interest
receivables of approximately HK$537,000 (2012: HK$1,687,000) from the
Convertible Bonds issued by China Environmental and other receivables
of HK$NIl (2012: approximately HK$4,000,000) from the Call Option
Holder regarding the consideration of the Call Option of the

Convertible Bonds.

As at 31 December 2013, included in other receivables are dividend
receivables amounting to approximately HK$9,841,000 (2012:
HK$764,000) regarding the investment in redeemable convertible
preference shares as detailed in Note 22 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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23.

24.

Ho{th &YW SRR (B i)

JRE M B 33R e LA PR MR

BWERRFE @
RZE—=Z=F+ZA=+—H8" 8
147,460,000 t(ZF — = ¢ 1 49,779,000
BLTIZEBREREFNEUNRFEY
215,877 OOO%EZLmHﬂ%(_*—:i :
36,960,000 7T) YEHL I & o

RZZE—-—=ZF+-_A=Z=+—H8" 8
44,169,000 70 ( —F— —4F : 44,374,000
T0) Z FEWE S R BEEE A ETRD (ZF
— % : #925,000,000/8 T —KEB LT
N AP EE 1T A B AR R % 44,606,0008 T 2

ZEBAZRERS) (EERIRGR -
EWETA&E@EL&TA
2013 2012
—2-=% ~T-—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET T
579 173
4,984 1,301
10,972 7,246
15,956 8,547
16,467 8,720

Wit RZBE—=F+A=+—08 HEKRFEL
FER G R BEIRIRATE (T AR IR E 5 2 FE IR B4
537,0005%7%(:;7:¢ © 1,687,000 7T.) & 5
AR ES 2 REPERERRRESRESZEA
ZEMERHREBETE (=T — =4 : 494,000,000

AL °

RZE—=F+ZA=+—8 HEtEKFES
ERAIEE A R E R 2R E 2 R 8 4
9,841,000 7T (= F — — 4 : 764,000i8 7T) » &
BENRE SRR E22 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group allowed a
credit period in the range from 30 to 90 days (2012: 30 to 90
days) to its debtors. An aging analysis of the trade receivables
at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date,
is as follows:

Within 90 days 90H K

The aging analysis of the trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

Neither past due nor impaired

There was no trade receivable balance as at 31 December
2013 and 2012 which was past due for which the Group has
not provided for impairment loss at the end of both reporting
periods.

In determining the recoverability of a trade or other
receivable, the Group considers any change in credit quality
of the trade and other receivables from the date credit was
initially granted up to the reporting date. In view of the good
settlement history from those debtors of the Group, the
Directors considered that there is no impairment loss
recognised for the year. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

ire B HmRM R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z—=F+-"A=1+—HIFE

24, FEWERR K H b FEWFRIE (&)
BE-—ZT-——F+-A-+—HAIEE &
EEMEBEHEARRNTENR(ZE
——fF 30F90H) 2 EEH - BERER
HASTE - AR Aok 2 FE U BR ZRBR 4 ) 47 0
T

2013

—E—=

2012
—E——4F
HK$'000
FETT

HK$’000
FET

511 173

I 4B B S BB AR B (B 2 FE U BR R Bk
DT

2013

—g-=

2012
—E - F
HK$'000
TABTT

HK$'000
FRET

R M RRE 511 173

RZE—=ZFR_T——F+_A=+—
B ECAEANEBEMERSHRD
AR R EE B 2 B R R4S -

7 7E B MR R S L b B MR TR 2 BT e 1
B AREZEAEARREEERREER
SR ERUREREE BRI EREE R
ERAERZEE - ERARE 2 EHANK
RERM EFARFALEREZDRMER
18 o AEE B AT AHIA TR E AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-T—=—F+-A=-+—BHLEE

25. INVESTMENT HELD FOR TRADING 25. HEXBKRE
2013 2012
—E2—= —ET 5
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Listed securities FhEH
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REB LT ZRAES - 15,050
The above listed securities were fully disposed of during the Tt FHESFEREBE_E—=F+H
year ended 31 December 2013. =t—RIEFERHEL -
26. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 26. RITEHREERS
Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates ranging BHE_Z—=F+_A=+—HILFE R
from 0.01% to 0.5% (2012: 0.01% to 0.5%) per annum for the THBIENTF001EZOSE(ZT—ZF:
year ended 31 December 2013. 001 EZEQSE) 2RITHIHFEREETE o
The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks IRITRASBRTFE I B B R ek 2 Al 58
with no recent history of default. RAT -
The Group's bank balances and cash that are denominated in REENEHEEEEREYEEE NG
currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant BZRITAEBRNMRESIT ¢

group entities are as follows:

2013 2012
—E—=F —FT——4F

HK$’'000 HK$'000
FER T

RMB AR & 426 421
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27.

28.

29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Other payables H b fE A 5RIA
Accrued expenses JEFTRASZ
Receipt in advance TEWFRIE
AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS

The amounts due to directors were unsecured, interest free
and repayable on demand as at 31 December 2012.

NOTE PAYABLE

On 12 April 2012, the Group completed the Acquisition. Part
of the consideration was satisfied by issuing 10% promissory
notes in the principal sum of HK$195,000,000 (the “Promissory
Notes"”). The maturity date of the Promissory Notes was 15
months from the date of issuance. During the year ended 31
December 2013, the Group has fully repaid the Promissory
Notes of approximately HK$10,000,000 (2012:
HK$185,000,000).

ire B HmRM R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z—=F+-"A=1+—HIFE

27. HtENFIEREER

2013 2012
—_=2—= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
41 6
1,312 1,874
64 3
1,417 1,883
28. EEENIE

RoE——F+-A=+—H ENESK
HARER - Ti A RAREREE -

S EE

NoZ——FNA+=—0  NE@EERKE
£IH o P RELAZEITASEE A 195,000,000
BLZI0EBARER(ELERD Z2H
NEM - A A EE 2 2E A B BT A
H15EA - BE—FE—=%+_-F=+—8H
IFFE - AEEDBH(EE X 10,000,000
7o (=& — — 4 : 185,000,000 7T ) Z 7 3,

ES 7

29.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B PR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-T—=—F+-A=-+—BHLEE

30. BORROWINGS

l\VT\

Current — on demand or within one year
Other borrowings — unsecured

Other borrowings represented borrowings from an
independent third party.

Maturity

date
FERA

Fixed rate unsecured other borrowings
denominated in HK$:

HihE S |IKFBLEE

HK$ loan of HK$65,000,000 26 April 2014

7 70 B 7% 65,000,000 75 7T — o4
mA=-+/~H

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the interest
expense of approximately HK$1,130,000 (2012: HK$200,000)
was recognised in profit or loss as cost of sales.

DEFERRED TAXATION
No deferred tax asset attributable to the deductible
temporary differences and tax losses of the Group have been

31.

recognised for both years as it is uncertain that there will be
sufficient future profits available to utilise the balances. At the
end of the reporting period, the Group had unexpired
estimated tax losses available for off-setting future taxable
profits and deductible temporary differences of
approximately HK$5,985,000 (2012: HK$15,466,000) and
HK$79,006,000 (2012: HK$78,487,000) respectively.
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30. HE

BNE] — Bk —
Hib e — EER

interest rate

2013
—_E—=

2012
—E - F
HK$'000
T T

HK$'000
FRET

FA
65,000 -

HifEERREBLFE =T ZEE

Carrying amounts
AR {E
Effective
2013
—E—=F
HK$'000
FEx

2012
—E——4F
HK$'000
T4

BIRR =

10% 65,000 -
HE-_Z—=%+-_A=+—HBItEE 7
B B & 491,130,000 T( =& — = F:
200,0007870) ERERER AHEEK K -
31. EERIE

HRELETEREE A RARIEF AR
BRAAMEH  UMEFERHERASE
Era RSB RN EBERRAEL
MIBEE - PMEHR - AEBEEHADE
ZHAREEETARKESANNA
5,985,000/8 7t ( = F — — 4 : 15,466,000
7T) %2.79,006,000% 7T, ( = F— —4F : 78,487,000
BIL) Z AR RFERRURF R Al N ey 2= 58 o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. CONVERTIBLE NOTE

On 12 April 2012, the Group completed the Acquisition.
Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement entered into
with the Vendors, the total consideration for the Acquisition
of HK$310,000,000 was satisfied as to (i) HK$33,000,000 by the
issue of the convertible bonds, which carried no interest, in
the principal amount of HK$33,000,000 (the “Convertible
Note"); (i) HK$82,000,000 in cash; and (i) HK$195,000,000 by
the issue of the Promissory Notes. The Convertible Note in
the principal amount of HK$33,000,000 was fully converted
into 379,310,344 ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.087
on 12 April 2012.

The principal terms of the Convertible Note were as follows:

The maturity date of Convertible Note was the date
immediately following one year after the first issue of the
Convertible Note (the “Note Maturity Date”). The holders of
the Convertible Note had the rights to convert the
Convertible Note, in whole or in part into the conversion
shares, at any time from the day immediately following the
issue of the Convertible Note, up to the day immediately
prior to the Note Maturity Date.

The Company was entitled at its sole discretion to redeem
any of the Convertible Note remaining outstanding at par at
any time from the date of issue on 12 April 2012 and up to
and including the date falling seven days immediately before
the Note Maturity Date.

Any of the Convertible Note remaining outstanding at the
Note Maturity Date must be mandatorily converted into
conversion shares.

The Convertible Note contained two components: equity
component and derivative component.

The Company's early redemption option embedded in the
Convertible Note was accounted for as a “derivative financial
asset” and was measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

The derivative financial asset of Convertible Note was fairly
valued by the Directors with reference to a valuation report
issued by Roma Appraisals.

ire B HmRM R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z—=F+-"A=1+—HIFE

32. IRREE

R-ZE——FMA+=-8  KEETKKE
EIH - RIBHRESFIV 2 EE R - BWES
18 7 41X {8 310,000,000 7T 5 #Z LA T 75 =,
B« (i) 3174 & %A 433,000,000 7% 7T 2
FEABMBRES(UBREKRERE]) - WX
33,000,000 7T : (ii)82,000,000 7% 7T A 1] &
SO RGinE T R A E BN A
195,000,000 7% 7T © AN 4 ¥8 43 33,300,000 % 7T
ZABREEER S ——FMN A+ -HE
540 5 379,310,344 I = P E E.0.087 78 7T
i /NGIE ]

AR RE 2 T2 EHRAT

AREREIHA ((REIMA]) REES
RBETARERER —F2H - I RERE
FAEABEREZEABRERFTIERE
EERZRIHARN—BHRE - BREEE
KB AR SR B B R IR

ARREEEENBEREHTAH T
FOA+-_BREREFRIHABAMNELA
(BREER) LM - BEFRZEERE R T
AR JBBRRE -

ERRREZ BRI Z ATHRRERA
58 il S R B AR

MR REmER Y MOTET AR RME
B HEMK -

AMBRREME AR RIREBEEIEZETD
RIPTEERMEE] HAARK - AIHAFE
e MAFEZBANIEEMER -

HREERZITECHEEREE2EHE
FHEEH 2 AERSER QA FHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-T—=—F+-A=-+—BHLEE

32. CONVERTIBLE NOTE (Continued) 32. A[ARKRERE (&)
The fair value of the derivative financial asset of Convertible AMEEE TS MEEATFEIERE -
Note was calculated using the binomial model. Major BHREHE - StE R FEMAEAZ TERAZ
parameter adopted in the calculation of the fair value are 2SN -

summarised below:

Convertible

Note

AR IR =B

12 April 2012

g

A+=H

Stock price & (& HK$33,000,000 % 7T

Exercise price TEE HK$33,000,000 % 7T

Risk-free rate 4 a5 g 1) =R 0.16%

Expected volatility TRHAK I8 4.768%

Expected life TaHAF £ 0.984 year
The assumptions adopted for the valuation of the Convertible YT I S T E AR B RN T

Note were as follows:

(1) The estimation of risk-free rate had made reference to (1) EBRERBRFRSZFHATTIRKER
the yield of Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note with same Rz FBINEE S ZE M R A

duration as the Convertible Note;

(2)  The expected volatility for the underlying security of the (2 BEREEETESBEREDREAR
redemption option was determined based on the AIREZELRIBEE &
historical volatility of the share prices of the Company;
and

(3) The expected dividend yield of the underlying security Q) EREETHES BAREKETIZ
of the redemption option was determined based on the AREBEMR IR FEEETE ©

historical dividend payment record of the Company.

The movements of the equity and derivatives components of BE_Z——F+_A=+—HILFEZ7]
Convertible Note for the year ended 31 December 2012 are Bl RS MOTAE T B0 2 EEE 5 0
set out below: D

Derivative
financial asset Equity Total
TTESREE B Fo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FTET TR
At 1 January 2012 RZE——F—H—H = = =
Issued during the year FERNELT (648) 29,748 29,100
Conversion to shares during the year FR R B AR D 648 (29,748) (29,100)
At 31 December 2012 R-EBE-——-—HF+=-A=+-—H - - _

134  Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z—=F+-"A=1+—HIFE

33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. KA
Number of
Par value shares Amount
HfE BB 2}
HK$ ‘000 HK$'000
BT Tk THT
Authorised: BE
At 1 January 2012 RZZE——F—H—H
Ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each SREECSE T ERER 0.025 16,000,000 400,000
Share consolidation (Note a) BRin &0 (ffiEa) N/AZ i A (14,400,000) -
Capital reduction (Note b) WRABIR (HrsEb) 0.01 - (384,000
Capital reorganisation (Note b) R AREHR (HiEb) 0.01 38,400,000 384,000
Share consolidation (Note d) Win & Bt (Bf7E d) N/AE A (35,000,000) -
At 31 December 2012 RZE—ZF+ZA= + El
Ordinary shares of HK$0.08 each BREE0.08BILZE 0.08 5,000,000 400,000
Share consolidation (Note f) B & o (Al N/ATE (3,750,000) -
Capital reduction (Note g) BAEIR (Bt g) 0.001 - (398,750)
Capital reorganisation (Note g) WRAER (ffitg) 0.001 398,750,000 398,750
At 31 December 2013 R=B-=5+=-A=+—-H
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each SREE0.001 BT ZER 0.001 400,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITRAR
At 1 January 2012 R-ZE——F—A—H 0.025 9,903,401 247,585
Share consolidation (Note a) Win & B (Hista) N/AE A (8,913,061) -
Capital reduction (Note b) BAHIR (B3t b) 0.01 - (237,682)
Issue of shares upon conversion RBARRERE TR
of convertible notes (Note ¢) (Histe) 0.01 379,310 3,793
Share consolidation (Note d) W1n &0 (ffizd) N/AZN i A (1,198,444) -
Issue of right shares (Note e) BITHBRRN (Kfite) 0.8 342,413 27,393
Issue of bonus shares (Note e) BITALR (Kfite) 0.08 1,712,063 136,965
At 31 December 2012 RZE-——%+-A=t+—H 0.08 2,225,682 178,054
Share consolidation (Note ) W&o (Hatf) N/ATER (1,669,262) -
Capital reduction (Note g) IRABUR (72 g) 0.001 - (177,498)
Issue of right shares (Note h) BT (ff3Eh) 0.001 1,112,841 1,113
Issue of bonus shares (Note h) EGI iR 0.001 1,112,841 1,113
At 31 December 2013 R-—EB-=5+-F=+—H 0.001 2,782,102 2,782
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-T—=—F+-A=-+—BHLEE
33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

136

Notes:

As disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 23 February 2012, a
share consolidation on the basis that every 10 issued and unissued
shares with the par value of HK$0.025 each in the share capital of the
Company had been consolidated into 1 consolidated share with the par
value of HK$0.25 each with effective from 20 March 2012. Prior to the
date of share consolidation, there were 9,903,401,934 issued shares,
after the share consolidation, the number of issued shares changed to
990,340,193.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the Company’s special
general meeting held on 19 March 2012, the Company'’s issued share
capital was reduced by cancelling the issued and unissued share capital
to the extent of HK$0.24 each such that the par value of the issued and
unissued share capital was reduced from HK$0.25 to HK$0.01 each, as a
result, approximately HK$237,682,000 was credited to the contributed
surplus of the Company.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the Company’s special
general meeting held on 19 March 2012, the Company’s authorised
share capital was increased from HK$16,000,000 divided into
1,600,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each to HK$400,000,000
divided into 40,000,000,000 new shares by creation of 38,400,000,000

new shares.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 12 April 2012,
the completion of the Acquisition took place on 12 April 2012. As part of
the consideration of HK$310,000,000, the Convertible Note in the
principal amount of HK$33,000,000 was issued by the Company. The
conversion price was HK$0.087 per conversion share. On 12 April 2012,
the Convertible Note was converted in full into 379,310,344 ordinary
shares with the par value of HK$0.01 each.

As disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 14 August 2012, a
share consolidation on the basis that every 8 issued and unissued shares
with par value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company had
been consolidated into 1 consolidated share with par value of HK$0.08
each with effective from 10 September 2012. Prior to the date of share
consolidation, there were 1,369,650,537 issued shares, after the share

consolidation, the number of issued shares changed to 171,206,317.

On 7 September 2012, the shareholders of the Company (the
"Shareholders”) approved by way of poll the rights issue on the basis of
2 rights shares for every 1 share held on the record date of 19
September 2012 at a subscription price of HK$0.56 per rights share with
bonus issue on the basis of 5 bonus shares for every 1 rights share taken
up under the right issue. The rights issue with the bonus issue became
unconditional on 11 October 2012. 342,412,634 rights shares and
1,712,063,170 bonus shares with the par value of HK$0.08 each were
allotted and issued on 11 October 2012 and net proceeds of
approximately HK$187,042,000 were raised. Details of the rights issue
and the bonus issue were set out in the circular of the Company dated
14 August 2012.
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33. A (#)

WA RRAMA—ET——F-A=-+t=HZiAE
EHFTHRER - AR EIRATR G 10 ZAREE0.025
BLZEBBITRABEITRMEMBIBREECS
B2 EHBRHZEEETROEH BT
—ZHF=-R-t+HBER - RRHAEEEZ
EETRM B 59,903,401,934 % - MAKMDA
(414 81 /990,340,193 % °

BER-F-——"F=R T NRABFTZARFRR
FHRIRGMEBEBRER  EBEHOETR
RETHRASRO24BTHI AR R R BHITHA -
HL OB RABRTRAZEEHRSR025ET
HURZEER001ET - BHARREMRBRER
#9237,682,000 87T °

BER—T——F=A+NBRTZARARKRE
BRAAEMABRALYAIAZR EHED
38,400,000,000 & # i (7 + iR E) 275 E A SR
16,000,000 7T * % /4 1,600,000,000 f& & % & &
0.0178 7Tz EiAA% - 3= 400,000,000 7T 2 A
40,000,000,000 B& A% 17

HMAARBSMAZS ——FNE+-—HYAS
s WESEHEER-S——FNA+=ZHR
X ° 5 AH{E 310,000,000 7T 225 © RAFE
#4177\ 4 58 433,000,000 T 2 A AR K - K
BB AR B 0.087 BT c R-T— 4
A+=AH  ATRREERE ARSI A 379,310,344
B SR E{E 0.01 8 7T 2 @Ak o

BIMARRBHRAE-_ZT——FN\ATEBZBK
i RARARATESRIFREMEO0.01E
TZBBITRAFEITRMAE A 1IREECSE
TZEPRG 2 EEETRNEH BT —=
FNATHREN - RRHEBEIRTZERIT
B {5 8B A&1,369,650,537 f% + AR D A G Bl
171,206,317 % ©

RZZT—ZFNAEH  ARRRE(RRE]
R B TR R A B IR TR ARAR 1 0.56 75
TZREBEBHETHBR(EEERCHAH (=T
—ZFNATIE)BHE —RRMHEZEMA M
RRARAD ) BAT FI 21T (B RRIBE R TEE R
HRR DB ARR) - HRELFBFITHR=Z
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 14 August
2013, a share consolidation on the basis that every 4 issued and
unissued shares with the par value of HK$0.08 each in the share capital
of the Company had been consolidated into 1 consolidated share with
the par value of HK$0.32 each with effective from 15 August 2013. Prior
to the date of share consolidation, there were 2,225,682,121 issued
shares, after the share consolidation, the number of issued shares
changed to 556,420,530.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the Company’s special
general meeting held on 14 August 2013, the Company's issued share
capital was reduced by cancelling the issued and unissued share capital
to the extent of HK$0.319 each such that the par value of the issued and
unissued share capital was reduced from HK$0.32 to HK$0.001 each, as
a result, approximately HK$177,498,000 was credited to the contributed
surplus of the Company.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the Company’s special
general meeting held on 14 August 2013, the Company'’s authorised
share capital was increased from HK$1,250,000 divided into
1,250,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each to HK$400,000,000
divided into 400,000,000,000 new shares by creation of 398,750,000,000

new shares.

On 4 October 2013, the Shareholders approved by way of poll the rights
issue on the basis of 2 rights shares for every 1 share held on the record
date of 15 October 2013 at a subscription price of HK$0.18 per rights
share with bonus issue on the basis of 1 bonus share for every 1 rights
share taken up under the right issue. The rights issue with the bonus
issue became unconditional on 4 November 2013. 1,112,841,060 rights
shares and 1,112,841,060 bonus shares with the par value of HK$0.001
each were allotted and issued on 4 November 2013 and net proceeds of
approximately HK$197,346,000 were raised. Details of the rights issue
and the bonus issue were set out in the circular of the Company dated
16 September 2013.

All the shares which were issued during the years rank pari
passu with the then existing shares in all respects.

ire B HmRM R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-Z—=F+-A=+—HILFE

33. A (#)

Kret - (&)

BUARREBHA—ZT—=F \B+HEZAE
FT#t e - AR RRAP F4REREE0.08%5
TZBBITRABITRMHAEMHAIREECI2E
TZAHBRG 2 EEETROEHF BT —=
FENA+ABRER - RERHDEHTEBERTZE %
TN B 5 2,225,682,121 % » AR & &
81| £ 556,420,530 1% °

BER-F-—=FN\ATHRABFTZARERR
FHRIRGMEBEBRER  EBEHOETR
ARBEITRAFRO0INETHR AR BB BITR
A BLPBEITRABTEAZEESFR032
BILEIRZEER0.001ETT - AR EHEH
#HR49177,498,000 4 7T ©

BERZT—=FN\A+NBERTZARARKRE
BRAAEMABRALYAIAZR EHED
398,750,000,000 A& ¥ i {7+ #&ZAN A &) Z 0% TE R A
£ 1,250,000 ¢ » % /& 1,250,000,000 f% & A% E{E
0.00178 7T 2 # 3@ % » 45 = 400,000,000 7T * 2
/£400,000,000,000 R %157 °

RZZ—=F+AMA ' BELIRBREIRZERR
T A B R T RERRD 0.18 T 2 REEEST
ER(EELARTDEAR(ZE—=4+A+HA)
BEE RO MR ) AL FI BT
(BEABEHRTEE —RERRMHER R
i) o HARBAFIBITR T —=F+—AWBK
BEEME 2 1,112,841,060 % 2 1,112,841,060 % &
AREE0.001 BT 2 RN RAKRER =T —=
F+—AMBEERET EEMERETFEY
197,346,000 7T © #LIR KA FIBITHBEH N AR
RIAA—T—=FNA+/"AZMK -

BT 2 AR 17 5 05 B S 2 TR
ARG AREER -
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  34. Z<A 3]~ B8 48R 3R 3%

COMPANY
Statement of financial position information of the Company at RATRBEHR T BRRHFERELR W
the end of reporting period is as follows: T

2012
—E——F

HK$'000
Fis

Non-current assets EMBE E
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB MR 1,875
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZIKE 36 -
Convertible instruments designated AMRRTA(BER
as financial assets at fair value through BEAFEERBER
profit or loss PR eREE) 104,712
Available-for-sale financial assets AN ESREE -
106,587
Current assets MENE B
Other receivables H At FEUIFRIE 6,873
Investment held for trading BERFIKE 15,050
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note) i N NS B
(Ktaz) 441,089
Bank balances and cash RITEBRER S 16,704
479,716
Current liabilities mEAE
Other payables and accruals F A B A 5RIA K
[EETER 850
Amounts due to directors (Note) B EEIE
(HiaE) 154
Note payable FENERE 10,000
Interest payable FERTFILE 3,334
Borrowings B8 -
Convertible note ATRRER 32 -
14,338
Net current assets MENVE ERE 465,378
Total assets less current liabilities BERERTBAR 571,965
Capital and reserves B K #
Share capital [N 33 178,054
Share premium gk} 35 524,993
Available-for-sale revaluation reserve AN EEGREE 35 -
Share-based payment reserve PAR A R ERE R SRR 35 1,367
Contributed surplus BEE% 35 100,717
Accumulated losses 2EtEE 35 (233,166)
Total equity R 571,965
Note: The amounts are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. Htet © ZEFBAEER T B RBREREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e MR
For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T SHET-A=t+-ALER
35. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 35. ZNA T e

Available-
forsale  Convertible Share-based
Share  revaluation notes  payment Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve surplus losses Total

THiE  TRRRE JRGAZE
BtveE  BfERRE BE  AREE  RERR  ZHER ait
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO0  HKSOO0  HKSOWD
TR T TR TR ThR TR AL

At 1 January 2012 RZE-F-f-8 340,037 - - - - 213342) 126,695
Loss and total comprehenive EREEREART A%

expenses for the year - - - - - (19.824) (19.824)
Capital reduction (Note 33(b) TRAHIR (T 330)) - - - - 231,682 - 237,682
Acquisition of subsidiaries WENEAT - - 2748 - - - 974
Issue of shares upon conversion of RRTARZERETRG

convertible notes (Note 33(c) (W#336) 25,307 - (29.748) - - - (4.441)
Issue of right shares (Note 33(e)) BATHRRG (Wi 336) 164,358 - - - - - 164,358
Right issues expenses RS 4.709) - - - - - 4.709)
Issue of bonus shares (Note 33(e)) BATHRR (W3t 33e) - - - - (136,965 - (136,965)
Issue of share option LERE : - - 1367 - - 1367
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—E4+-f=1-H 524,993 - - 1,367 100,717 (233,166) 393911
Profit for the year ianyayil - - - - - 65,494 65,494
Other comprehensive income EREHZENG

for the year
Items that may be subsequently RGTqEN 82

reclassified to profit or loss: BnEA

Available-for-sale financial assets: fLESRAE

— Change in fair value —LTEEY - (18278) - - - - (18.278)

Total comprehensive (expenses) ERRE(RR) WEEE

income for the year - (18,218) - - - 65,49 47216
Capital reduction (Note 33(g) BAER (Bt 33g) - - - - 177,498 - 177,498
Issue of right shares (Note 33(h)) BOBIRIRG (H:233m) 199,199 - - - - - 199.199
Right issues expenses RS (2.966) - - - - - (2.966)
Issue of bonus shares (Note 33(h) BB (E330) - - - - (1,113 - (1,113)
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=£+-F=1-H 721,226 (18,278) - 1,367 277,102 (167,672) 813,745
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HE =F+-A=+—HIEFE
36. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 36. RINB AR ZIRE
The Company
P /N
2013 2012
—E—= —EF—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT FHTT
Unlisted investments, at cost FELTIRE - KA = -
Less: Provision for impairment B ORER = -
Details of all the subsidiaries held by the Company as at 31 ARABIR—_E—=FK -_FT——F+_H
December 2013 and 2012 are as follows: E‘T’—El%ﬁz}aﬁﬁwg AIFHIEAT -

Place of Particulars of issued
Class of incorporation/ Place of  share capital/paidup Attributable equity
Name of subsidiaries shares held establishment operations registered capital interest of the Group  Principal activities

BRITRA/

WELARER FEROER  ERAL/RUtE SELE BREMERFE FREEERRE  FEXH
2013 2012
ZE-Zf “Z-F

Direct subsidiaries:

HEWEATF:
Best Harvest Asia Limited Ordinary shares  British Virgin Islands ~ HK US$1 100% 100%  Securities trading
(“BVI")
EBDMERAF gl BRAFE BB (B 100% 100% #EHEE
(ZBRZEE])
Smart Source Corporation Ordinary shares  Hong Kong ("HK") ~ HK HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
ERARAT LEK BE(FE)) BB VBT 100% 100% REER
Joy Wealth Finance Limited ~ Ordinary shares ~ HK HK HK$1 100% 100%  Money lending
ARHHARAT il o &R BT 100% 100% f&E
Treasure Brand Limited Ordinary shares BV HK US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EEK BRAEE BB (3 100% 100% REER
Century Praise Limited Ordinary shares ~ BVI HK US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
("Century Praise”) LRER EERTES )6 E9 100% 100% REER
Alpha Riches Limited Ordinary shares BV HK US$1 100% 100%  Inactive
EEK BRAEE BB (3 100% 100% EEEH
Perpetual Master' Ordinary shares ~ BVI HK US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
gl RERLEE B 1% 100% 100% REER
Create World Enterprises Ordinary shares  HK HK HK$1 100% 100%  Inactive
Development Limited? L@k Bk B 187 100% 100% EEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z—=F+-"A=1+—HIFE

36. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. RfBARIZIRE (&)

Place of Particulars of issued
Class of incorporation/ Place of  share capital/paidup  Attributable equity
Name of subsidiaries shares held establishment operations registered capital interest of the Group  Principal activities

BRITRE/

HEARAR FERGER  EMRL/RItd SEwH BRFMERTHE FEEEERE  FERH
2013 2012
—E-=f —Z——F

Indirect subsidiaries:

BENEATE
BEBMAEEAARE  Ordinaryshares  PRC PRC HK$780,000 100% 100%  Inactive
ARRA?
EAR i HE 780,000 7T 100% 100% EEEH
Pacific Vision Advisory Ordinary shares  HK HK HK$1 100% 100%  Provision for corporate
Services Limited secretarial and
consultancy services
AEBARBARAA LR BB B R8T 100% 100% RELEWER
h
AR
Blooming Faith Development ~ Ordinary shares  HK HK HK$1 100% 100%  Inactive
Limited?
BER BB BB 1T 100% 100% EEZH
Profit Grand Ordinary shares BV BVI usb170 30% 30%  Investment holding
gl RRELEE REELEE 170X 30% 0% RAER
|-Sky Natural* Ordinary shares  PNG PNG PKG100 30% 30%  Forestry business
Bl B B 100E4 30% 0% FRIETE
MRS RS
! Newly incorporated during the year ended 31 December 2012. 1 REBE-—E——&E+-A=+—HIFEEBTS
lidp A
2 Blooming Faith Development Limited (“Blooming Faith”) and Create 2 Blooming Faith Development Limited([ Blooming
World Enterprises Development Limited (“Create World"”) were Faith]) % Create World Enterprises Development
incorporated on 2 August 2011 and 3 August 2011 respectively, in which Limited ([ Create World ) B RIR —E——4 N\ A
the Group acquired 100% of their issued share capital both at a “TBER-E——E\A=-HEMRY  TAEE
consideration of HK$1 on 20 June 2012. Blooming Faith and Create RoT——E XA -+AHEN1ETAE KR
World were inactive at the date of acquisition and hence the Directors % B %47 % A& 100% ° [ R Blooming Faith %
considered that the considerations paid were approximately to their fair Create World AURRE A B A1 ¥ i 278 -t
value at the acquisition date. BA ENRERESHNEESZATER
Ao
: The Company is registered in the form of wholly foreign owned 3 S NTIANEG B E DR o
enterprise.
4 On 12 April 2012, the Group completed the Acquisition. Profit Grand 4 R-ZE——EmA+-—H AEE=RIES
Group is regarded as subsidiaries of the Group as the Group has control 1A o Profit Grand £ BB ARE®E Z HEAT -
over Profit Grand Group by the control over the majority composition of I Ty B A AN 42 B B 32 4 Profit Grand B2 Ee 2
the board of directors of Profit Grand and 51% of the total voting rights KEBDFL B KI5 Profit Grand IR B A & 4 1R =
in the general meetings of Profit Grand. 1> 519% 124 Profit Grand &2 & ©
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities at the end of REL B FERIAERE - SHBAFEE
the year or at any time during the year. EEEEE -
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HE-T—=—F+-A=-+—BHLEE

37. COMMITMENTS 37. &iE
OPERATING LEASES KREHE
The Group as a lessee KEEERABA
The Group leases certain of its office properties under AREFRERKLESLHASETRAS
operating lease arrangements. At the end of the reporting 2o IR A - ANEE [E AR IR N AT Y AR
period, the Group had total future minimum lease payments HEMABY(NZBEZEHEEFIBEATEILL
under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: RS A :
2013 2012
—E—= —EF——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Within one year —FNR 1,299 1,641
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_FEERF(BEERMF) = 1,163
1,299 2,804
Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for terms of 2.8 HOSEEREEEFAAI28F(ZE—=
years (2012: 2.8 years). F:28%) HAMEENTE -
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

During the annual general meeting held on 12 June 2012 (the
"AGM"), the Shareholders duly approved the relevant
resolutions to adopt a new share option scheme (the “New
Share Option Scheme”) by authorising the Directors to allot
and issue up to the 10 percent of the issued share capital of
the Company under the New Share Option Scheme. The
Directors or an authorised committee were authorised, at
their/its absolute discretion, to grant options to any person,
subject to the selection criteria, being an employee, officer,
agent, consultant or representative of the Group, including
any executive or non-executive directors, in order to provide
incentives to the grantee to contribute to the Group and to
enable the Group to recruit high-calibre employees and
attract resources that were valuable to the Group. Under the
New Share Option Scheme, the Company may grant options
to any participant, in the absolute discretion of the Board,
who has made valuable contribution to the business of the
Group. The subscription price will be a price determined by
the Board and at least the highest of (a) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets on the date of grant of the option, which must be a
business day; (b) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
option; and (c) the nominal value of the shares.

38.

APEBEERARAT IE—=FFRH

ire B HmRM R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z—=F+-"A=1+—HIFE

BRESE
RZE—ZFRNATZHRTZREBEFK
g ((RFRBFAE]) £ BRRIEA#EHERS
IRFEE - ABREN B AE S 8 ([ 3R T
gl])  RRESRENBRET SR H N %
TARBZEETRARZ 10% - EFHHE
BRREZEQERE "2ENBRERER
RERER AR OBERE  ZFEALARA
SEES  SABE  REA BRIKE
(BREFMAITIIFNTES) - §HEEER
BRAHAEEELER - YBMAKERER
EBHNEELRTMEAEEABENER
RIBFBERETE - KRB REES2E
BERREAEEEBELREERRZEM
SEATREBRE RBEFSHEESE
ERABER T RS T : (o) RHOBRE
ZR(BEREXR)EBMRMEARERAN
HAMDUTHE « b) BERELBREZ TR
fE% 2% A AR R P H RERMHRBD T3
Wi(E : K(o)BnEIE
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HE-T—=—F+-A=-+—BHLEE

38.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Upon the completion of the Acquisition on 12 April 2012, an
option had been conditionally granted by the Company to
each of FEIBEII R T X (K E) 222 7] (China Longjiang
Forest Industry (Group) General Corporation) (“Longjiang
Forest Industry”) and Jia Run Investments Limited (“Jia Run”)
to subscribe for not more than 49,517,009 shares of the
Company after the proposed share consolidation as
mentioned in Note 33(a) to the consolidated financial
statements became effective (equivalent to 6,189,626 shares
of the Company after the proposed share consolidation as
mentioned in Note 33(d) to the consolidated financial
statements becoming effective) (the “Longjiang Option” and
the "Agent Option” respectively). After the rights issue as
mentioned in Note 33(e) to the consolidated financial
statements became effective, the number of shares could be
subscribed became 12,936,318 as at 31 December 2012. After
the share consolidation and the right issue, as mentioned in
Note 33(f) and Note 33(h) to the consolidated financial
statements, became effective, the number of shares could be
subscribed became 6,287,049 as at 31 December 2013. The
Longjiang Option and Agent Option were granted to
Longjiang Forest Industry and Jia Run respectively for the
establishment of a strategic alliance between the Company
and Longjiang Forest Industry with respect to the
development and management of the forest acquired under
the Acquisition with the assistance of Jia Run as an agent. No
share options had been exercised during the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012.

#  For identification purpose only
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38. BRETE (@)

WEEBER —_T——FNA+-_HTKE
RARDBIAFEETIHRMATE(EE)EA
RITEEIHRMIED R BEREBRAT
(Is=8)) SRR T AR - U RIRETE
BIRA M RRM 3BT EZRDE
BEHE R 2 49,517,009 AR 2 B AR 1D (AB &
NER A BTSSR R B 52 33(d) PRt AL 1D &
B A 15 2 6,189,626 B AN A &R ) (9 Bl
BB TR R TRIBHED - NRATH
WMERKEDBE) MM ERERE R2F
——FF+ A=+ B HERERMZHE
£12,936,318 % ° IR & B 15 3R 3% T 3£ 33(1)
T B 5% 33(h) AT it B 10 & BF R AR AR B 4T A3
% O R-ZE-—=F+-A=+—BA#HAE
% (7 & B & 6,287,049 0% o 88T HAME I (38
HEDNDREFEIGMIEREH &
S BEARIEZIHBE N HAR B HEEETHM
TERBREREBREEBEIRE 2 HFMRE
VRBBE BE_ZT—=—FR_ZFT—_F
+ZA=1+—HILFE  BEEAEREE
1118 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T SHET-A=t+-ALER
. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 38. BRETE (@)

The movements of the share options of the Company during AT AN TN AR EE &
the years are as follows:

2013 —E-=F

Outstanding at Adjustment Adjustment Outstanding at
1 January Granted  due to share due to Lapsed 31 December
Option type 2013 during 2013 consolidation* right issue*  during 2013 2013

R-E-= R-g-=
-A-B RIE-=F RRAOEH REtRT R-B-=% +-A=t-A
HERR MR Rt miEdEE feih R 5% MR

Other eligible persons

ABAERAL

— Longjiang Forest Industry Longjiang Option 12936,318 - (9,702,239) 3,062,970 - 6,287,049
—BIRHIR EIHE

Weighted average exercise price HK$2 - HKS8 HK$8 - HKS8
EFHTEE 2ET - 8T 8ET - 8B
2012 —g—-=

Outstanding at Adjustment Adjustment Outstanding at
1 January Granted  due to share due to Lapsed 31 December
Option type 2012 during 2012 consolidation* right issue*  during 2012 2012

RZE-Z% RZE-Z%
-A-B RIB-Zf RRAHEH Rit®m W=Z--f +-ZA=1-H
HERR MR Rt WELEE et %% MR

Other eligible persons

EaERAL
— Longjiang Forest Industry Longjiang Option - 49,517,009 (43,327,383) 6,746,692 - 12.936,318
—HIRNIE R
— JiaRun Agent Option - 49,517,009 (43,327,383) 6,746,692 (12.936,318) -
-8 REH#

- 99,034,018 (86,654,766) 13,493,384 (12.936,318) 12.936,318
Weighted average exercise price - HK$0.375 HK$3 HK$2 HK$2 HK$2
METATRE - 0375%T 3BT QBT 2ET BT
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HE-T—=—F+-A=-+—BHLEE

38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

38. BRETE (@)
K RAR R Y BB

2013 2012
Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period Exercise price  Exercise price
—B-CF
et =p REAH Cikid e
Longjiang Option 12 April 2012 Upon the grant of Forestry For 1 year but no later than HK$8* HK$2**
Authority Clearance 31 December 2015
ETHE ZE-ZERmATZA REHAHEERT R —§ EMERZE-1%E 8L 2B
+ZA=t+-H
Agent Option 12 April 2012 12 April 2012 Up to 31 December 2012 N/A HK§2**
RIEEE ZET-ZFMATZH ZE-ZFMATZA HEE-T--F TER 2B
+ZA=+-AL

* BEROEHEEBRA BN -—E—=F\A+HHA
RZE-—=F+—-AMOAERE BREZITE
EHRRE2ETRRE2ETARERSE TR
R8BI o BB BE IR E B & BF R AR
L -

Following the share consolidation effective from 15 August 2013 and
rights issue effective from 4 November 2013, the exercise prices of share
options were adjusted from maximum of HK$2 and minimum of HK$2 to
maximum of HK$8 and minimum of HK$8. The number of share option

was also adjusted as a result of the share consolidation and rights issue.

* * BEROEHEEBRABIR-Z——FAATAER
TE-CHFTAT-BAERE  BREZITEE
HERE0SBTRRZEDSETHARERS 2T
R &IE2/87T o BIERE 71 E M & 6 R K
ML % -

Following the share consolidation effective from 10 September 2012
and rights issue effective from 11 October 2012, the exercise prices of
share options were adjusted from maximum of HK$0.5 and minimum of
HK$0.25 to maximum of HK$2 and minimum of HK$2. The number of
share option was also adjusted as a result of the share consolidation and

rights issue.

146

Share-based payment expenses of HK$1,367,000 has been
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for
the year ended 31 December 2012. It gave rise to a share-
based payment reserve. No liabilities were recognised due to
these equity-settled share-based payment transactions. No
share-based payment expenses were recorded for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

The fair values of Longjiang Option and Agent Option
determined at the date of grant using the Monte Carlo
simulation method were approximately HK$1,339,000 and
HK$28,000 respectively.

As the fair value of the services received could not be
estimated reliably by the Company, the fair value of service
received from Longjiang Forest Industry and Jia Run was
measured indirectly by reference to the fair value of the
option granted.

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

LA 19 7 Z 88 5 3R S 1,367,000 7T E 7))
AEBEZE——F+-_A=1+—HItFEZ
RAEHRERK  FAMELS—BARMD BERA
HEE - WERZEREEEURG AER
NEXGERTWNEE - BEZT—=F
+TZA=+—HIFE  WEHFURDA
B -

AS SR BB ROAES F e T BifE A IR Bk
RIEE B Z AFED B A1,339,000 %
7T % 28,000 7T ©

Py 3 BT MR AR 75 22 25 S (B 8% e A ) AT S8
B At - WO 3 BT ARAR T 8 R 5 AT
BRAs 2 A FAALS B2 FrE B > A (B
RIEEE -



38.

39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair

values of share options at the grant date:

38.

ire B HmRM R

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Grant date il A

Share price AP B

Initial exercise price H1TRE
Expected option period e F il A pE £ Y
Expected volatility TEERR 1B

Risk-free interest rate # P T 22
The Monte Carlo simulation method has been used in
computing the fair value of the share options based on the
Directors’ best estimate. Changes in variables and
assumptions may result in changes in fair value of the
Longjiang Option and Agent Option.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

Century Praise has entered into a conditional agreement with
the Vendors on 2 December 2011 (the "“Profit Grand S&P
Agreement”) for the Acquisition at a consideration of
HK$310,000,000. The consideration of the Acquisition was
satisfied by (i) cash of HK$82,000,000, (ii) Promissory Notes
with aggregate principal amount of HK$195,000,000 and (iii)
Convertible Note with aggregate principal amount of
HK$33,000,000.The Acquisition was completed on 12 April
2012.

According to the Profit Grand S&P Agreement, the Group
would have the control over the majority composition of the
board of directors of Profit Grand and 51% of the total voting
rights in the general meetings of Profit Grand. Accordingly,
the Directors considered that Profit Grand Group became
one of its indirect subsidiaries of the Group and the financial
performance of the Profit Grand Group would be
consolidated into the consolidated financial statements of the
Group after completion of the Acquisition.

39.

APFEXRERERAE 22—

HE_Z—=F+-A=1+—HILFE
BRrEst 8o
AAEBRER R B AT EMMAERKRN
T
Longjiang
Option
RESLHARE
12 April 2012 12 April 2012
—E——F —E-—F
MA+=H mMA+=—H
HK$0.08387C  HK$0.083 7T
HK$0.25 to HK$0.25 to
HK$0.5 HK$0.5
0.25 87T %E 0.258TE
0.5%&7T 0.5%&7T
1.723 years  0.641 years F
205.924% 82.203%
0.207% 0.145%

E%%TE"$1EB1EH%%%-F%Eﬁ‘%%%%
ZEREGBFAHESH - IREHRERZE
BRI %ﬁl%‘%iﬁﬂ%&ﬁﬁEH%Z’A%‘“TEH
PREEE) -

WEEME AR

Century Praise ER—_F——F+=-H = H
?dﬁLlﬁz%%IEéﬁi?iEﬂj—ﬁﬁ11%1%55%%
([Profit GrandB E #% & 1) R B A
mmmmw%m W%%EZKFEMTW
FREN ¢ () AR £ E1482,000,0007 7T : (ii)
$$%ﬁ%@ﬁﬂW%%EZ%Rmﬁv
R (iii) 7K 4 4% %8 /5 33,000,000 7T 2 7] #8 j%
B WBEEER_TE——FMNA+=H
FERK ©

R YE Profit Grand BE B e+ ANEE 1§ A%
#l Profit Grand 2 & £ @ #H A & R Profit
Grand R A& L1THEHBIEERE 251% o
Al EERAE - Profit Grand B E K A
AEBETEEWB ARG 2 —  MProfit
Grandﬁlzﬁﬁﬁkiﬁﬁf‘ﬂﬁl%%E W{éﬂ—r
MAREE 2 RGN TIERRIREETE
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39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. WEBHEB AR (&)

CONSIDERATION TRANSFERRED HENRE

HK$'000

FHBT

Cash R 82,000
Promissory Notes O ERE 195,000
Convertible Note at fair value (Note 32) AR EE — A FE (Kt 32) 29,100
Adjusted consideration EFEEAE 306,100
The Directors considered that the carrying value of the EZRn ARAAZEBEREHAZIE - &
Promissory Notes at issuance date approximate to its fair HERBTABM RABERE A TERE

value due to short-term maturity.

NET ASSETS RECOGNISED AT THE DATE OF R R RR 2 EEFE
ACQUISITION
Carrying value Fair value
BRTEE AFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET
Non-current asset FRBEE
Deposit for application of logging concession  E K REFFFIE 2 1T % 269 269
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERER
The non-controlling interests (70%) in Profit Grand Group R UEE E18 B BIME R 2 Profit Grand & & 3
recognised at the date of Acquisition were measured by PEAR %S (70%) THE$ 22 E 14 Profit Grand (2 &
reference to the proportionate share of recognised amounts ZEEFECHERTERADGLIEE -

of net assets of the Profit Grand Group.

GOODWILL ARISING ON THE ACQUISITION WIREHELE 2HE
HK$'000
THETT
Consideration transferred BEECRE 306,100
Add: non-controlling interests o SRR ERS 188

Less: recognised amount if identifiable W BB R BRI FEE RS E

net assets acquired (269)
Goodwill arising on the Acquisition (Note 19) W ETEEEZHE (Mt 19) 306,019
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39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Goodwill recognised in a business combination is an asset
representing the future economic benefits arising from other
assets acquired in a business combination that are not
individually identified and separately recognised. The future
economic benefits may result from synergy between the
identifiable assets acquired or from assets that, individually,
do not qualify for recognition in the consolidated financial
statements. As at the date of this report, certain consents,
licenses and approvals are still under negotiation and have
not been obtained, the inherent logging concession is not
identifiable and distinguishable from the goodwill of the
Profit Grand Group. Accordingly, the fair value attributable to
the Profit Grand Group is allocated as goodwill instead of an
intangible asset.

None of the goodwill arising on the Acquisition is expected
to be deductible for tax purposes.

NET CASH OUTFLOW ARISING ON THE
ACQUISITION

ire B HmRM R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z—=F+-"A=1+—HIFE

39. WEEMB AT (&)

REBEHER B BERERS ATk
ZHMEBEEMB R ARG ER =N —IBE
? HE AR RIF RIS E T R o RARLK
BT RE S B ATUEE R BRI EECHEE
Tﬁ%ﬂf'ﬁﬁﬁ&%ﬁﬁ?ﬂ/ﬂlﬁu RERE B 155
RER - BEAREEE  ATRE - 77
b MR RADEREERE R - RA
R FF BE R A] 4 Profit Grand 52 & i & b
RIS o ALt 0 Profit Grand 5 [& FEAG
NEEESEAHEMIEEFLEE -

R RBNBEEENEL Z BB T AR
BiIA o

WBESHERELECRESRHFHE

HK$'000
TR

Consideration paid in cash NREZ M 2RE 82,000
Less: deposit paid as at 31 December 2011 B R —E——F+_A=+—H

ZEffEe (20,000)
Net cash outflow BE ML FH 62,000

IMPACT OF THE ACQUISITION ON THE RESULTS
OF THE GROUP

Included in the profit for the year ended 31 December 2012
was loss of approximately HK$5,000 attributable to the Profit
Grand Group. No revenue for the year is attributable to the
Profit Grand Group.

Had the Acquisition been effected at the beginning of the
year, the total amount of revenue of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2012 would have been approximately
HK$34,720,000, and the amount of the profit for the year
ended 31 December 2012 would have been approximately
HK$62,341,000. The proforma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue
and results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the Acquisition been completed at
the beginning of the year, nor it is intended to be a projection
of future results.

WESEEHAREREZE

Profit Grand % B FE {5 E518 49 5,000 8 L E &F
ABE-ZE——F+-_A=1+—HItFEZ
S o A K B Profit Grand 52 B 2 W

sy
fm °

WK EERNFYER AEEHE-F
——HF+ A=+ —HALEFEZWRRER
49 /34720000080 MEBE T ——4F
+Z A=+t BHLEFEZEMNAHN A
62,341,000 7T o ILEZEEREMHFAA
% WARREASEE T ESBERF YT
REEREEA 2 WRREEEE  TEEE
BARREFE 2 TER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-T—=—F+-A=-+—BHLEE

40.

41.

150

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
has issued Convertible Note and Promissory Notes with
an aggregate principal amount of HK$33,000,000 and
HK$195,000,000 respectively as part of the consideration
of the Acquisition.

(b)  On 12 April 2012, Convertible Note with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$33,000,000 were converted in
full into 379,310,344 ordinary shares with par value of
HK$0.01 each (Note 33(c)).

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME
CONTRIBUTION

The Group has joined the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("MPF Scheme") for all of its employees in Hong Kong. The
MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of an independent trustee. Under the rule
of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at rate
specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions arising from the
MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss represent contributions payable to the scheme by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the scheme. For the
year ended 31 December 2013, contributions of the Group
under the MPF Scheme and the funds amounted to
approximately HK$382,000 (2012: HK$325,000).
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40.

41.

FEFRERS

@) BEZZTE——-F+-A=+—HIEF
E AEEEETRASRES A
33,000,000 7t & 195,000,000/ JT 2
AR EE LR ALZR  (FAKES
B2 #HARIE -

b) RZE—-FNA+—H AEHE
/533,000,0007% 7T 2 ] #A % = 55 B &
HR 5 379,310,344 I F A% EI{E 0.01 78
TL2 E AR (5 33(c) ©

RKEFET B

AEECREZEEBEEZIEHIMELE
rr 8l ([@EETE]) - BESAHENEL
RSB ABEFERPIRRFIEATES
AHEIEEREM - RESHICEERLE
BrEESRRAE Ed—BUXTARE
B REBEEFEIZAA - BERAESR
AR BIERAETE 2L R A EELHR -
AEEHRE B 2 E—RERRIEE
TR PR R -

Birf BRIk BB 8 TEEERR
AT B FIE RSB RIZET SRR AEE 2
hEmEEER 2R HEZE—=
+ZA=+—HUIEFE  AEEBREEES
FFEI R ATES MEN 2 #5495E 382,000 7T
—ZT— 4 :325000%7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z—=F+-"A=1+—HIFE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42. BEALIRS
(a) Included in other receivables was amount due from a (a) ER—BTEREANBEDTAEME
substantial shareholder, which is disclosed pursuant to Wk - ERERBE D TIEHE161B
Section 161B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinances G -
as follows:

(b)

Maximum
amount
outstanding
during
the year
2013 FRARHEE 2012
—E-=F BSeH —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET T
Allied Summit Inc. - 274 274
The amount due was unsecured, interest free and RN GRIB BB - TEFIB R BE
repayable on demand. ERIFE -
COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT (b) TEEEBEAEMS
PERSONNEL
The remuneration of Directors and other members of FR EFRAMFEERAEZM
key management during the year was as follows: 20T
2013 2012
—E-—= —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Short-term benefits G EARE A 1,358 2,798
The remuneration of Directors and key executives is BEERTETHRABZME T M
determined by the remuneration committee having ZEEKB2ERARB LTS EDLE
regard to the performance of individuals and market BT -
trend.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-T—=—F+-A=-+—BHLEE

43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

152

(a)

On 9 January 2014, the Group entered into a second
loan agreement with an independent third party with
whom a first loan arrangement was entered into on 9
December 2013 for a loan facility amount of
HK$30,000,000 which was repaid in full prior to the
entering of the second loan agreement. Pursuant to the
second loan agreement, a loan facility of HK$30,000,000
at interest rate of 24% per annum for a term of three
months from the date of the loan agreement which may
be extended for further three months. The Group shall
have absolute discretion as to whether to make
available any sum for drawdown which is subject to inter
alia, the provision of securities or collaterals with
principal value of not less than the sum of drawing.

As at the date of the report, HK$30,000,000 has been
drawdown with a collateral of shares of a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange by way of
share mortgage and guarantee.

On 14 January 2014, the Group entered into a second
loan agreement with an independent third party with
whom a first loan agreement was entered into on 19
December 2013 for a loan facility of HK$9,000,000 which
is still being outstanding as at the date of the report.
Pursuant to the second loan agreement, a loan facility
of up to HK$62,100,000 at interest rate of 12% per
annum for a term of six months from the date of
drawdown which may be extended for another six
months. The Group shall have absolute discretion as to
whether to make available any sum for drawdown which
is subject to inter alia, the execution of a share
mortgage and the provision of such collaterals in the
form and substance acceptance to the Group.

As at the date of the report, HK$62,100,000 has been
utilised from such facility line by that customer with the
executed share mortgage for certain shares of a
company listed of a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange.
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43. FEWREE

(a)

R-ZT—NF—ANE REBHE—
BN E=H (BN _E—=F+_A
1 H 5t & %830,000,00078 7T 2 B EE
EREFIVE—HERWE BER
HEREILE_MERBGHASERE
BIFIUE—MER & - BRIEE=H
EX e - B4R 4 £ 530,000,000
T ENEE FR24E  AERW
FEORAPH=Z@EA  XTHBLEER
Z@A - AEBAZENBIATES
LA REE AR - WA (A4 E
B)RERSEETLVRARRNEE L
IR o

AIRE B H - B 42E130,000,0007 7T -
A AR 19 12 18 R YR AR 7 R 4 — KB
RETER EM AR ZBRDIERERGS -

R-_ZT—MNE—A+MA REHHE
—HBUE=ZH(ER_T—=F+=
A+ B 5t £ %89,000,0005 T2 BE&
BEHEVE—MHERDGE 56
HEHEAREBBNHAEER)ILE
ZIER W o BEFE _HDER B
B IR & % &= 62,100,000 7T 2
EXEE FR12E  HIEREBE
sFAMNEARA keBLERAMEA -
REBA2EWNEATRELHEM
FREE DA IRER - W /E (H A B 3E) $7T
BrmBEAREEEZ ZEA LA

BretZFETS -

RBESEY ZEFPCHAZMER
J€ 2.62,100,00078 7T - I £2 4 70 B 2
PRER ETRARSE TROZERITR
DIRIE -
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